






 
 

        For Service in the Armed Forces of the United States of America 

 

PRESENTED TO: 

Commander Robbie K. Taylor 
On March 1, 2015, Commander Robbie K. Taylor retires from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 

with more than 23 years of faithful and continuous service dedicated to the Armed Forces. During this time he has 
received numerous Awards and Decorations including: 

Superior Unit Award 
Global War on Terrorism Medal 
Field Medical Readiness Badge 
Crisis Response Service Award 

Hazardous Duty Award 
National Defense Service Medal 

 
In official recognition whereof and with great pride, I, Christopher Fielder, Mayor, on behalf of the City Council of the City of Leander, 
Texas do hereby affix my signature this 15th day of January, 2015.        

                                                                                                                                         Attest: 

____________________________________                                                                  ____________________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                                                                Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Presentation by LandDesign regarding the process and schedule for 

the Comprehensive Plan update. 
 
Background: The City's consultant for the comprehensive plan update will be in 

town for the kick-off meetings for the project and will give a 
presentation to the Council on the proposed process and schedule 
for the project. 

. 
 
Origination: City of Leander 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: None 
 
Attachments: None 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  1/7/2015 
 



 
 
 

                                                                          MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ December 18, 2014 at 7:00 PM  

  
  
 
 
 
 

 
1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Lynch delivered the invocation  

  2.  Roll Call 
       All present except Mayor Pro Tem Garcia 
 
  3.  Staff Comments: Tom Yantis – recognition of Martin Siwek for AICP Certification 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager introduced Martin Siwek and congratulated him on receiving  
         his AICP Certification 
 
        Council Member Dishongh congratulated the AYFL Lions for achieving 4th Place in the Nation 
        In Orlando, Florida 
 
  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
       No citizen comments 
 
  5.  Recognition of Michael Malone, Chair of the Veterans Park Ground Breaking Festival 
       Sponsored by Mayor Fielder 
      Mayor Fielder introduced Michael Malone and thanked him for his work in making the 
      Ground Breaking of Veterans Park a success 

 
 
 

  6.   Approval of the minutes: December 4, 2014  
 
  7.  Resolution Supporting Funding for Local Park Grants & State Parks 
 
  8.  Approval of a Special Event Permit for the American Cancer Society 
 
  9.  Approval of a Letter of Agreement with Pedernales Electric 
 
10.  License Agreement with Taylor Morrison for the installation and maintenance of irrigation,  
       landscape, hardscape, and decorative lighting within the City rights-of-way in the Bluffs at Crystal  
       Falls Subdivision 
 
 

               Mayor   – Christopher Fielder    Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
              Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette                        Place 5 – Jason Dishongh  
              Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch                                 Place 6 – David Siebold  
              Place 3 – Simon Garcia (Mayor Pro Tem)   City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
 
11.  License Agreement with Transit Village Investments, Ltd. for the installation and maintenance of  
       irrigation, installation of landscaping, and construction of internal driveways with the City rights-of- 
       way of Hero Way and Mel Mathis Avenue 
 
12.  Amendment to the Development Agreement for the Marbella Tract between the City of Leander and 
       NK Land Development, LLC 
 
13.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Pecan Creek Phase 2 
 
       Council Member Lynch requested item #8 be pulled for separate consideration 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve all the consent agenda items except  
       #8.  Second by Council Member Siebold.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve item #8.  Second by Council Member 
       Lynch. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

  
        
 

 
14.  First Public Hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land being 166.47 acres, more  
       or less, in Williamson County, Texas, and being generally located north of Crystal Falls Parkway,  
       south of Old 2243 W and west of Bagdad Road, also known as the Falcon Oaks area 
 
       Tom Yantis, Asst City Manager explained the process and spoke about the Williamson  
        County Commissioners Court appointment of 5 residents of Falcon Oaks who will meet with  
        the City representatives concerning the Municipal Services Plan 
 
        Bill Burba, 707 Osprey Drive – confirmed what Mr. Yantis has stated 
 

 
 

               
                            
15.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-031: Consider a zoning change for a 5.88 acre tract of 
       land, more or less, generally located to the northwest of the intersection of South Bagdad Road and  
       Marsala Circle from LO-2-B, Local Office and MF-2-B, Multi Family to LC-2-B, Local Commercial  
       and MF-2-B, Multi Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Ken Liem on behalf of Emmet J. and Sally Hawkes 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Marshall Hines, 1801 Montana Court – spoke against the multi-family and in favor of leaving 
       the existing Local Office zoning the same 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-031: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning  
       Ordinance for the property located to the northwest of the intersection of South Bagdad Road and  
       Marsala Circle, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
        Ken Liem, Applicant explained his request for LC zoning 
        Kurt VanderMeulen - Representative for applicant explained the request 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve the Multi Family and deny the Local  
       Commercial zoning.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese.  Motion passes, all voting 
       “aye” 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING: NO ACTION 

 



 
 
 

 
  
  16.  Consider Award to LandDesign for the Comprehensive Plan Update Consulting Services and authorize  

           the City Manager to execute the contract in an amount not to exceed $147,981 
           Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member  
       Dishongh.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

     17.  Discussion and possible action to appoint the members of the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee 
           Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

        Motion made by Mayor Fielder  to appoint Council Members Abruzzese and Siebold to the  
        Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee.  Second by Council Member Navarrette.  
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
        Mayor Fielder made a motion to approve the entire list of committee members for the  
        Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee. Second by Council Member Dishongh. Motion 
        passes, all voting “aye” 

 
  18.  Consider Change Order To Purchase One (1) Additional Vehicle For Building Inspections Division 
          Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member  
        Siebold.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
  19.  Consider Professional Services Agreement and Task Order HVJ-01 with HVJ Associates for professional   
         engineering services to complete a Pavement Management System with the option of a Sign Inventory and 

Retro-reflectivity Survey 
         Pat Womack, Public Works Director explained 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member  
        Dishongh. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
  20.  Consider Emergency Purchase of Water Line Relocations for Hero Way PEC Transmission Line  
         Relocations  
         Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
        No action required on this item 

 
  21.  Consider Contract Proposal for Engineering Services for Phase 2 Deep Water Intake Preliminary Design  
         by and between the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority and HDR Engineering, Inc. 
         Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member  
        Dishongh.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

              22.  Council Members Closing Statements 
            Council Members gave their closing statements 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 



 
     23.   Adjournment  
             With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:01 pm 
 
 
         Attest: 
 
 
             ______________________________                              _______________________________ 
             Christopher Fielder, Mayor    Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

January 15, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for: Hazlewood 3 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Hazlewood 3 have 
been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation 
required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated, on January 15, 2015 which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through January 15, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Hazlewood 3. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

























AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

January 15, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for: Savanna Ranch 3 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Savanna Ranch 3 
have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation 
required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated, on January 15, 2015 which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through January 15, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Savanna Ranch 3. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



































AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-031: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a portion of a tract of land, for 5.88 acres more 
or less, generally located to the northwest of the intersection of 
South Bagdad Road and Marsala Circle, WCAD Parcel R430194. 
Currently, the property is zoned LO-2-B (Local Office) and MF-2-
B (Multi-Family) and the applicant is proposing to zone the 
property LC-2-B (Local Commercial) and MF-2-B (Multi-Family), 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Ken Liem on behalf of Emmet J. and Sally Hawkes. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the staff recommendation of approval of 
the MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and denial of the LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial) with a 5 to 2 vote (Commissioners Stephenson and 
Anderson opposed) at the December 11, 2014 meeting.  The City 
Council approved the Planning & Zoning Commission 
recommendation of approval of the MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and 
denial of the LC-2-B (Local Commercial) at the December 18, 
2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
   
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/30/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-031 

THE VILLAGE AT CARNEROS REZONING 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Emmet J. and Sally Hawkes 
 
Current Zoning: LO-2-B (Local Office) 
 MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
 
Proposed Zoning: LC-2-B (Local Commercial) 
 MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located to the northwest of the intersection of South 

Bagdad Road and Marsala Circle and includes approximately 5.88 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH GC-3-C Undeveloped land zoned for commercial uses 

EAST LC-2-B Undeveloped land zoned for commercial uses 

SOUTH OCL 
SFU-2-B 

Property located outside of the City Limits  
Established Neighborhood (Vista Ridge) 

WEST SFU-2-B Neighborhood under construction (Vista Ridge Estates aka 
Carneros Ranch) 

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

MF – MULTI-FAMILY:   
Features:  Apartments (25 un./ac. if Type A; 18 un./ac. if Type B) 
Intent:  Development of multi-family dwelling structures. Such components are generally 

intended to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive uses 
such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  Such components are also intended to create 
more variety in housing opportunities in the fabric of the community but are intended to be 
utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to strictly multi-family residential 
development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) acres of contiguous land having 
a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification 
street. 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
TYPE 2:   

Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 
dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE B:   

Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   

 



Attachment # 1                 

(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions.   

(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 
non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Residential neighborhoods are the predominate land use within the City and it's ETJ.  
Neighborhoods are primarily composed of single-family detached housing and include 
other compatible uses including parks, schools, and places of worship.  Neighborhoods 
may be low to moderate density depending upon the topography and the feasibility of 
providing organized sewer service.  Areas with steep topography, flood plain or other 
natural features that are intended to be preserved and served by on-site sewage systems 
will be the lowest density while areas that are relatively flat and where organized sewer 
systems are feasible will be of medium density.  Residential neighborhoods provide 
connections to each other and to neighborhood, community and town center nodes.  A 
variety of lot and house sizes are encouraged within residential neighborhoods. 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial) in order to allow for the development of a multi-family community and retail 
center at this location.  There are established single-family neighborhoods located to the west 
and south with commercial zoning located along Bagdad Road and to the north.  The proposal is 
to add more MF-2-B zoning to the north of the property and add LC-2-B zoning to the site.  
Currently there are 11.7 acres of MF-2-B zoning and 5.94 acres of LO-2-B zoning.  The new 
total would be 13.83 acres of MF-2-B and 3.58 acres of LC-2- B zoning. 
 
The proposed MF use component would permit the construction of multi-family units.  The 
intent of this use component is to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and 
more intensive uses such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  In this situation, the proposed 
multi-family would serve as a buffer between the existing residential and S Bagdad Road.  This 
use component is also intended to create more variety in housing opportunities in the fabric of 
the community but are intended to be utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to 
strictly multi-family residential development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) 
acres of contiguous land having a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a 

 



Attachment # 1                 

collector or higher classification street.  Access to this project would be from S Bagdad Road 
which is classified as a major arterial on the Transportation Plan. 
 
The Type 2 site component would require that 35% of the multi-family units have an enclosed 
garage parking space.  This site component would also limit the outdoor uses associated with the 
nonresidential development.  This site component does allow for drive through service lanes and 
accessory buildings.  This site component does not allow outdoor storage, display, overhead 
service doors, carwashes or fueling stations.   
 
The Type B architectural component would permit a maximum density of 18 units per acre for 
the multi-family portion of the property and requires that the buildings consist of eight-five 
(85%) percent masonry for the first story walls and fifty (50%) percent masonry on second story 
walls.  
 
This property is located within the area designated for residential neighborhoods on the Future 
Land Use Map.  Residential neighborhoods are the predominate land use within the City and it's 
ETJ.  Neighborhoods are primarily composed of single-family detached housing and include 
other compatible uses including parks, schools, and places of worship.  Neighborhoods may be 
low to moderate density depending upon the topography and the feasibility of providing 
organized sewer service.  Residential neighborhoods provide connections to each other and to 
neighborhood, community and town center nodes.  A variety of lot and house sizes are 
encouraged within residential neighborhoods. 
 
The property is adjacent to a Neighborhood Center that is centered at the intersection of  
Municipal Drive and South Bagdad Road.  These nodes are approximately one quarter mile in 
diameter and incorporate approximately 30 acres.  These areas are intended for neighborhood 
scale commercial, retail and office uses that serve the immediately adjacent neighborhoods.  
These areas are also intended for higher density single-family, two-family  and other  compatible 
housing types including townhouses and condominiums. Development within these nodes should 
be integrated through internal streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to 
adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested MF-2-B (Multi-Family) district and denial of the 
LC-2-B (Local Commercial) district.  This property is not located within a node identified on the 
Future Land Use Map.  The Comprehensive Plan does not support this zoning district within the 
residential neighborhood area.  The LC use component is more appropriate closer to the 
intersection of Vista Ridge Drive and South Bagdad Road.  In addition, the proposed MF-2-B 
zoning district will serve as a buffer between South Bagdad Road and the neighborhood that is 
currently under construction to the west. 

 



4D

5C

3A

2A2A2A
2A

2A 2A2A

W SOUTH ST

S BAGDAD RD

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

MUNICIPAL DR

ENCINO DR

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

NOGALES LN

SA
NG

IO
VE

SE
 S

T

AMARONE DR

PINOT NOIR ST

CINDY LN

SE
ND

ER
O 

LN

SHAMITAS CT
VISTA RIDGE DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-031

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Village at Carneros

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node



4D

5C

3A

2A2A 2A2A2A

W SOUTH ST

S BAGDAD RD

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

MUNICIPAL DR

ENCINO DR

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

NOGALES LN

SA
NG

IO
VE

SE
 S

T

AMARONE DR

CINDY LN

PINOT NOIR ST

SE
ND

ER
O 

LN

SHAMITAS CT
VISTA RIDGE DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-031

Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
Village at Carneros

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

Proposed
LC-2-B

Proposed
LC-2-B

Proposed
MF-2-B



S BAGDAD RD
N BAGDAD RD

W SOUTH ST

MARSALA CIR

TERRACE DR

ENCINO DR

MUNICIPAL DR

LEE DR

SA
NG

IO
VE

SE
 ST

NOGALES LN

AMARONE DR

PINOT NOIR ST

SE
ND

ER
O 

LN

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-031 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Village of Carneros



  ATTACHMENT 5 
 
 

Letter of Intent for Zoning Change 
 

We would like to request a zoning change property along Bagdad Road from “LO-2-
B”  (A1) to “MF-2-B” in order to get a better use of the Multi Family site.  The water 
detention of this parcel will be located at the northern corner of (A1). 
 
Secondly, we would like to rezone “LO-2-B” (A2) to  “LC-2B” To support the 
immediate area and surrounding.   
 
Thirdly, to rezone the “LO-2-B” (A3) TO “LC-2-B”  
 
This lower parcel requires a separate water detention from the multi family due to 
Marsala Circle has been constructed.  
 
This Multi family project will be acting as the transition or buffering site between 
the surrounding GC, LC and Carneros Ranch single family to the West. 

 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PORTION OF A TRACT OF 
LAND FROM LO-2-B (LOCAL OFFICE) TO MF-2-B (MULTI-FAMILY); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following portion of a parcel of land, which 
is herein referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 2.13 acres, 
more or less, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of South Bagdad Road and 
Marsala Circle in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit 
“A”, legally described as 2.13 acres out of the Moses S. Hornsby Survey Abstract 292; identified by 
tax identification number R430194; more particularly described in document number 1993005005 
recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from LO-2-B (Local Office) to MF-2-B (Multi-Family) as shown in 
Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 18th day of December, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



4D

5C

3A

2A2A 2A2A2A

W SOUTH ST

S BAGDAD RD

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

MUNICIPAL DR

ENCINO DR

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

NOGALES LN

SA
NG

IO
VE

SE
 S

T

AMARONE DR

CINDY LN

PINOT NOIR ST

SE
ND

ER
O 

LN

SHAMITAS CT
VISTA RIDGE DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-031

Exhibit A
Proposed Zoning Map
Village at Carneros

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

Proposed
MF-2-B

179'
209'

282'

61'77'



AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area 

of land being 166.47 acres, more or less, in Williamson County, 
Texas, and being generally located north of Crystal Falls Parkway, 
south of Old 2243 West and west of Bagdad Road, also known as 
the Falcon Oaks area. 

 
Background: On March 6, 2014, Council adopted an ordinance amending the 

City's annexation plan to add the Falcon Oaks area to the plan.  
Property owners within the area were notified of the inclusion of 
their property in the annexation plan.  Staff notified existing 
service providers in the area requesting an inventory of services 
currently provided.  No responses were received by the deadline 
and the inventory of services was completed and posted on the 
City's web site. 

 
 The public hearings on the annexation are required to be completed 

within 90 days after the inventory of services is completed.  Based 
upon the annexation calendar these public hearings must be 
completed by January 30, 2015.  The first public hearing was 
conducted on December 18, 2014. 

 
 By State law, the Williamson County Commissioners Court is 

required to appoint 5 representatives from the area being annexed 
to negotiate with the City on the provision of services to the area 
upon annexation.  The Commissioners Court will be appointing the 
five representatives in December.  After the public hearings, City 
staff will meet with the appointed representatives to negotiate the 
services to be provided to the area and complete the service plan 
by August 31, 2015. 

 
Origination: City of Leander 
 
Financial  



Consideration: The cost of providing services will be determined as the service 
plan is finalized. 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends conducting the second public hearing. 
 
Attachments: 1.  Annexation Plan Ordinance 
 2.  Annexation schedule 
 3.  Map exhibit of annexation area 
 4.  Annexation service plan 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  1/7/2015 
 











SCHEDULE FOR ANNEXATION APPLICABLE ONLY TO PROPERTY  
INCLUDED IN AN ANNEXATION PLAN - FALCON OAKS SUBDIVISION  

 
STEP 

 
DATE 

 
ACTION/EVENT 

 
1 

 
March 6, 2014 

 
COUNCIL BY WRITTEN ORDINANCE amended Annexation Plan to include 
Falcon Oaks Subdivision 
(Loc. Gov't Code §§ 43.051 & 43.052) 

2 After adoption of 
Annexation Plan 
Amendment 

POST AND MAINTAIN ANNEXATION PLAN ON CITY'S WEBSITE  
(Loc. Gov't Code §43.052(j)) 

 
3 
 

 
By June 4, 2014 

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS AND SERVICE PROVIDERS of 
inclusion of property in Annexation Plan (If applicable, Notice to Railroad)   
(Loc. Gov't Code §43.052(f))  
INCLUDE REQUEST TO SERVICE PROVIDERS for information necessary 
to compile inventory of services and facilities in Step 4 
[Note:  Service Providers have 90 days to provide the requested information, 
unless the City and the service provider agree to an extension.] 
(Loc. Gov't Code § 43.053(c) – (f)) 

 
4 

By the 60th day after 
receiving information 
from service providers 
(November 1, 2014 latest 
possible deadline if 
notice sent June 4th, 
unless agreed to extend 
the period for providing 
the information) 
 
[Generally 8 months 
after adoption of the 
Annexation Plan] 

 
COMPLETE INVENTORY OF SERVICES AND FACILITIES provided by 
services provides to the area in the Annexation Plan.  MAKE INVENTORY 
AVAILABLE for public inspection. (Loc. Gov’t Code, § 43.053(g)) 
 
City may monitor the services provided in the area proposed for annexation and 
verify the inventory information provided by the service provider. (Loc. Gov’t 
Code, § 43.053(h)) 
 
[Note:  If service providers do not provide the requested information within 90 
days or by the agreed extension deadline, the City is not obligated to include the 
service in the inventory] (Loc. Gov’t Code, § 43.053(c)) 

5 Before the public 
hearings in Step 7 
 
[Generally 10 months 
after amendment of the 
Annexation Plan] 

COMPLETE A DRAFT SERVICE PLAN for extension of municipal services 
to the area in the Annexation Plan 
(Loc. Gov't Code § 43.056(j)) 
 

6 Not less than 10 days 
nor more than 20 days 
before each public 
hearing 

NEWSPAPER NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
NOTICE BY CERTIFIED MAIL TO SERVICE PROVIDERS and, if 
applicable, to the Railroad  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school district of possible impact) 
POST NOTICE ON WEB SITE and MAINTAIN UNTIL COMPLETE  
(Loc. Gov't Code § 43.0561(c)) 

7 By the 90th day after the 
Inventory complete and 
made available to the 
public (January 30, 2015 
latest possible deadline, 
unless extension to 
provide the service 
information) 
[Generally 11 months 
after adoption of the 
Annexation Plan] 

HOLD TWO PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 [Note:  The Council has some flexibility in scheduling these hearings.  For 
example, Council could hold the public hearings at two consecutive, regularly 
scheduled meetings, as long as both hearings are held before the 90th day after 
completion of the Inventory in Step 4.] (Loc. Gov’t Code, § 43.0561(a)) 
 
At least one hearing must be held in the area proposed for annexation if a suitable 
site is available and more than 20 adult, permanent residents of the area to be 
annexed file a written protest within 10 days after the date of publication of the 
hearing notice.  (Loc Gov't Code § 43.0561(b)) 



 
8 

 
After the public 
hearings 

 
NEGOTIATE WITH PROPERTY OWNERS FOR THE PROVISION OF 
SERVICES TO THE ANNEXED AREA  
(Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.0562 -- 43.0564 (a)).   
County commissioner's court shall select five representatives to negotiate with the 
City for provision of services.  (Loc. Gov't Code §43.0562(b)).  The City may 
negotiate and enter a written agreement with the representatives for the provision 
and funding of services to the area.  (Loc. Gov't Code §43.0563(a)).  If the parties 
cannot reach an agreement, either party may request arbitration in writing before 
the 60th day after the service plan is completed in Step 9.  (Loc. Gov't Code 
§43.0564(a)) 

 
9 

 
By the 10th month after 
completion of the 
Inventory in Step 4. 
(August 31, 2015 latest 
possible deadline) 
 
[Generally 18 months 
after adoption of the 
Annexation Plan] 

 
COMPLETE MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN for extension of municipal 
services to the area in the Annexation Plan 
(Loc. Gov't Code § 45.056(a)) 
 

 
10 

 
Institution Date 
March 9, 2017 
 
[Property may be annexed 
not earlier than March 6, 
2017 and not later than 
April 5, 2017] 

 
FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
[Note:  Property included in the Annexation Plan cannot be annexed sooner 
than the third anniversary of the date the property is included in the Annexation 
Plan, and must be annexed no later than the 31st day after the third anniversary 
of the date the property was included in the Annexation Plan.] 
(Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.052(c) & (g)) 

 
11 

 
March 16, 2017 
 
[Property may be annexed 
not earlier than March 6, 
2017 and not later than 
April 5, 2017] 

 
SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
[See note in Step 10] 

 
12 
 

 
By April 14, 2017 

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary changes to County Voter 
Registrar in a format that is compatible with mapping format used by registrar 
Election Code §42.0615 
 
CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 

      8. Franchise Holders 
 



S BAGDAD RD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N BAGDAD RD

Falcon Oaks Area
166.47 Ac.

County Line
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Proposed Annexation Areas
Falcon Oaks Area

Ë
0 500 1,000

Feet



  

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is included in the municipal annexation plan; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that are existing are sufficient to service 
the subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force within the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 

 



  

 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  The following municipal services will be provided on a 
schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) The subject property currently receives water service from City’s system.  New 

requests for service shall be in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the 
City’s water utility system, the subject property’s owner shall construct the internal water 
lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such facilities necessary to 
provide water service to the subject property as required in City ordinances.  Upon 
acceptance of the water lines within the subject property and any off-site improvements, 
water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions 
and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; 
subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service 
is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water 
well that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property’s owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 

 



  

 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) Residential homes and businesses within the subject property are currently using on-

site sewer facilities.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject 
property’s owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the 
subject property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines 
within the subject property and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be 
provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as 
are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the 
ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater 
system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  
Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon request 
under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the effective 
date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall 
be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner requests and is 
able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

 

 



  

  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 
markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    

 
(iv)  In addition to the services listed above, the City will provide full municipal 
services to the subject property commensurate with the levels of services provided in 
other parts of the City except if differences in topography, land use, and population 
density constitute a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service, no later than 
two and one-half (2-½) years after the effective date of the full-purpose annexation.  If 
full municipal services cannot be reasonably provided within the aforementioned time 
period, the City will propose a schedule for providing said services within a period of 
four and one-half (4-½) years after the effective date of the annexation.   “Full municipal 
services” are services provided by the City within its full-purpose boundaries, excluding 
gas or electrical service. The City shall provide the services by and of the methods by 
which it extends the services to any other area of the City. 

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  The City will initiate acquisition or construction of capital 
improvements necessary for providing full municipal services adequate to serve the subject 
property.  Any such construction shall be substantially completed within two and one-half (2-½) 
years after the effective date of the full-purpose annexation.  If capital improvements necessary for 
providing full municipal services for the subject property cannot be reasonably constructed within 
the aforementioned time period, the City will propose a schedule for providing said services within 
a period of four and one-half (4-½) years.  Any such construction of capital improvements shall be 
accomplished in a continuous process and shall be completed as soon as reasonably possible, 
consistent with generally accepted local engineering and architectural standards and practices. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 
 

 
 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
Executive Summary 

January 15, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land 
being 35.48 acres, more or less, located in Williamson County, Texas, comprised of three (3) 
parcels of land being 21.690 acres, more or less, 12.580 acres, more or less, and 1.210 acres, 
more or less, and being generally located south of Highway 29, east of Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard and north of Kauffman Loop.. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its December 4, 2014 meeting.  The properties include three 
tracts of land totaling approximately 35.48 acres along Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. south of 
Highway 29 at the intersection of Kaufman Loop and part of the Wedemeyer Ranch.  The 
resolution set the two public hearings for January 15, 2015 and January 29, 2015.  The first 
reading of the ordinance is scheduled for February 19, 2015 and the second and final reading is 
scheduled for March 5, 2015. 
 
This is a voluntary annexation consistent with the development agreement for the Wedemeyer 
Ranch property. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the first public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation service plan 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 1/7//2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
WEDEMEYER PROPERTY 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
November 20, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings January 15, 2015 and January 29, 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By December 15, 
2014 

NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 

December 31, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
January 14, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

January 15, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

January 29, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
February 19, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

March 5, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



Tract 1

Tract 2
Tract 6

W SH 29

CR 268RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

KA
UF

FM
AN

 LO
OP

CR 267

Ë
0 300 600

Feet

35.48 Acre Resolution Area
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits

Wedemeyer Annexation Tracts



AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 
Executive Summary 

January 15, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land 
being 261.17 acres, more or less, located in Williamson County, Texas, comprised of four (4) 
parcels of land being 63.729 acres, more or less, 63.619 acres, more or less, and 127.269 acres, 
more or less, and 6.553 acres, more or less, and being generally located east of County Road 
279, north of Collaborative Way and the Savannah Ranch Subdivision. 
  
Background:  The Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts of land at its November 20, 2014 meeting.  The properties 
include the four tracts of land totaling approximately 261.17 acres north of San Gabriel Blvd and 
east of Bagdad Road.  The resolution set the two public hearings for January 15, 2015 and 
January 29, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for February 19, 2015 and the 
second and final reading is scheduled for March 5, 2015.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the first public hearing 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation service plan 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 1/7/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
DEERBROOKE SUBDIVISION +/- 261.17 ACRES 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
November 20, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings January 15, 2015 and January 29, 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By December 15, 
2014 

NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 

December 31, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
January 14, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

January 15, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

January 29, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
February 19, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

March 5, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



BYRON
CIR

OAK
GROVE RD

CR 279

PIT
KI

N 
DR

CH
IM

NE
Y D

R

ARVADA DR

HARTMAN DR

TERRY LN

MATHESON DR

OL
NE

Y D
R

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

HERITAGE
GROVE RD

LIVEOAK RD

MOCKINGBIRD HILL

TABERNASH DR

CR 280

LIVE
OAK RD

OA
K G

RO
VE

 R
D

OA
K G

RO
VE

 R
D

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

COLLABORATIVE WAY

R031697

R392814

R031695

R031696

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Deerbrooke Annexation
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits

Deerbrooke Annexation

Savanna Ranch
Subdivision



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Public Hearing on the Issuance of an Amount not to Exceed 

$30,000,000 "City Of Leander, Texas Combination Tax And 
Revenue   Certificates Of Obligation, Series 2015." 

 
 
Background: Prior to taking action regarding authorizing the sale of the 

proposed Certificates of Obligation, a public hearing is required. 
The principal amount is anticipated to be $28,385,000.  We will 
present the results of those bids and the pricing of the CO’s at the 
City Council meeting.  The proceeds will be used to fund the 
various CIP projects – including Old 2243 widening; Bagdad 
North widening; East Street; Municipal Drive; parkland, park 
improvements (Benbrook Park) and fire stations #4 and relocation 
of #1. 

 
 
Origination: Finance. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation: N/A 
 
Attachments: N/A 
  
Prepared By:   Robert G. Powers 
 Finance Director 



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
Executive Summary 

January 15, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Subject: Consideration and Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the 

Issuance of an Amount Not To Exceed $30,000,000 "City Of 
Leander, Texas Combination Tax And Revenue Certificates Of 
Obligation, Series 2015"; Authorizing The Sale Thereof; And 
Enacting Provisions Incident And Related To The Issuance Of 
Said Certificates 

 
Background: Our Financial Advisor, First Southwest, and the underwriting team 

led by JPMorgan Chase will be in the market on Thursday morning 
prior to the City Council meeting soliciting bids for the City’s 
certificates of obligation.  The principal amount is anticipated to be 
$28,385,000.  We will present the results of those bids and the 
pricing of the CO’s at the City Council meeting.  The proceeds will 
be used to fund the various CIP projects – including Old 2243 
widening; Bagdad North widening; East Street; Municipal Drive; 
parkland, park improvements (Benbrook Park) and fire stations #4 
and relocation of #1. 

 
Origination: Finance 
 
Financial  
Consideration: Estimated Annual debt service beginning in fiscal year 2016 

($1,675,000) and thereafter ($2,010,000) through 2035.  With ad 
valorem tax base growth assumptions, staff anticipates that a tax 
increase will not be necessary.  A shift of one to 1.5 cents between 
the M&O rate to the I&S rate, however, may be necessary next 
fiscal year until the I&S rate begins to drop due to the retirement of 
existing outstanding debt. 

 
Recommendation: N/A 
 
Attachments: Results and Ordinance to be provided 
  
Prepared By:   Robert G. Powers 
 Finance Director 



ORDINANCE NO. 15-001-00 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $_________ 
"CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2015"; AUTHORIZING THE 
SALE THEREOF; AND ENACTING PROVISIONS INCIDENT AND 
RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE OF SAID CERTIFICATES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) originally 
determined that it should issue certificates of obligation in an amount not to exceed 
$30,000,000 for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the  (1) 
construction of City-wide road and street improvements and the acquisition of rights-of-
way and easements therefor, (2) construction, acquisition and installation of additions, 
improvements and extensions to the City's Waterworks and Sewer System, (3) 
construction and equipping of two fire stations and the acquisition of sites therefor [site 
1 in the North Central part of the City and site 2 in the East Central part of the City], (4) 
construction of park and recreational improvements on City park land, (5) acquisition of 
land for a new City park in the vicinity of U.S. Highway 183 and the South Fork San 
Gabriel River, and (6) payment of professional services and costs of issuance related 
thereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing and intention to issue said certificates of 
obligation for such purposes has been published in the Hill Country News, a newspaper 
found and determined to be of general circulation in the City of Leander, Texas, on 
November 27, 2014 and on December 4, 2014, the date of the first publication of such 
notice being before the thirtieth (30th) day prior to the tentative date stated therein for 
the passage of this ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 15, 2015, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas, 
convened at 7:00 p.m. and after a public hearing, considered passage of an ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of said certificates of obligation (the “Ordinance”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the certificates of obligation in the principal amount of $__________ 
should be sold for cash in accordance with the provisions of Texas Local Government 
Code § 271.052, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, no petition protesting the issuance of the certificates of obligation 
described in the aforesaid notice, signed by at least 5% of the qualified electors of the 
City, has been presented to or filed with the City Secretary or any other City official on 
or prior to the date of the passage of this Ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this City Council hereby finds and determines that the above 
specified certificates of obligation described in said notice should be issued and sold at 
this time in the amount and manner hereinafter provided; 
 

00807088;1  



 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 
 Section 1.01.  Definitions. 
 
 Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires 
otherwise in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified 
below: 
 
 “Authorized Officials” means the Mayor, City Secretary, City Manager and/or 
Chief Financial Officer of the City. 
 
 "Certificate" or "Certificates" means the Certificates authorized to be issued by 
Section 3.01 of this Ordinance and designated as "City of Leander, Texas Combination 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015," in the aggregate principal 
amount of $___________. 
 
 "City" means the City of Leander, Texas. 
 
 "City Council" means the City Council of the City. 
 
 "Closing Date" means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the 
Certificates. 
 
 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including the 
regulations and published rulings thereunder. 
 
 “Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means the office of the Paying Agent 
which is designated for the presentment of the Certificates. 
 
 "DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or any 
successor securities depository. 
 
 "DTC Participant" means any broker, dealer, bank, trust company, clearing 
corporation or certain other organizations with bonds credited to an account maintained 
on its behalf by DTC. 
 
 "Event of Default" means any event of default as defined in Section 10.01 of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 "Fiscal Year" means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City 
Council. 

00807088;1 Page 2 



 
 "Initial Certificate" means the initial certificate described in Sections 3.04(d) and 
6.02(e) of this Ordinance. 
 
 "Interest and Sinking Fund" means the interest and sinking fund established by 
Section 2.04 of this Ordinance. 
 
 "Interest Payment Date" means the date or dates upon which interest on each 
Certificate is scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior 
redemption, such dates being February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing 
February 15, 2016. 
 
 "Mayor" means the Mayor of the City. 
 
 "Owner" or “Registered Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of 
a Certificate or Certificates, as shown in the Register. 
 
 "Paying Agent/Registrar" means initially BOKF, NA dba Bank of Texas, Austin, 
Texas, or any successor thereto as provided in this Ordinance. 
 
 “Purchase Contract” means the Purchase Contract pertaining to the Certificates, 
by and between the City and the Underwriters, approved in Section 7.01 of this 
Ordinance.   
 
 "Record Date" means the close of business on the last business day of the 
month preceding the month in which an Interest Payment Date occurs. 
 
 "Register" means the register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance. 
 
 "Surplus Revenues" means those revenues of the City's Waterworks and Sewer 
System available after deduction of the reasonable expenses of operation and 
maintenance of said Waterworks and Sewer System and payment of all debt service, 
reserve and other requirements with respect to all of the City's revenue bonds and other 
obligations, now outstanding or hereafter issued, that are payable from and secured by 
a lien on and pledge of all or part of the net revenues of said Waterworks and Sewer 
System. 
 
 "Unclaimed Payments" means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar 
for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates as the same come due 
and payable and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of Certificates for 90 days after 
the applicable payment or redemption date.   
 
 “Underwriters” mean J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Piper Jaffray & Co., and 
William Blair & Company.  
 

00807088;1 Page 3 



 “Waterworks and Sewer System” means the City’s combined water and sewer 
utility system. 
 
 Section 1.02.  Findings. 
 
 The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the 
operative provisions hereof. 
 
 Section 1.03.  Table of Contents, Titles and Headings. 
 
 The table of contents, titles and headings of the Articles and Sections of this 
Ordinance have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be 
considered a part hereof and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or 
provisions hereof and shall never be considered or given any effect in construing this 
Ordinance or any provision hereof or in ascertaining intent, if any question of intent 
should arise. 
 
 Section 1.04.  Interpretation. 
 
 (a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender 
shall be construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and 
vice versa, and words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative 
words of the plural number and vice versa. 
 
 (b) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally 
construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES 
CREATION OF FUNDS 

 
 Section 2.01.  Tax Levy for Payment of Certificates. 
 
 Pursuant to the authority granted by the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and each 
succeeding year thereafter while the Certificates or any interest thereon is outstanding 
and unpaid, an ad valorem tax within legal limitations on each $100 valuation of taxable 
property in the City, at a rate sufficient within the limits prescribed by law to pay the debt 
service requirements on the Certificates, being (i) the interest on the Certificates and (ii) 
a sinking fund for their payment at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per 
annum (whichever amount is the greater), when due and payable, full allowance being 
made for delinquencies and costs of collection; said tax shall be assessed and collected 
each year and applied to the payment of the debt service requirements, and the same 

00807088;1 Page 4 



shall not be diverted to any other purpose.  The taxes so levied and collected shall be 
paid into the Interest and Sinking Fund.  This governing body hereby declares its 
purpose and intent to provide and levy a tax legally and fully sufficient to pay the debt 
service requirements, it having been determined that the existing and available taxing 
authority of the City for such purpose is adequate to permit a legally sufficient tax in 
consideration of all other outstanding obligations. 
 
 The amount of taxes to be provided annually and transferred by the Authorized 
Officials to the Interest and Sinking Fund for the payment of principal of and interest on 
the Certificates shall be determined and accomplished in the following manner: 
 
 (a) The City's annual budget shall reflect the amount of debt service 
requirements to become due on the Certificates in the next succeeding Fiscal Year of 
the City. 
 
 (b) The amount required to be provided in the succeeding Fiscal Year of the 
City from ad valorem taxes shall be the amount of the debt service requirements to be 
paid on the Certificates in the next succeeding Fiscal Year of the City. 
 
 (c) Following the final approval of the annual budget of the City, the governing 
body of the City shall, by ordinance, levy an ad valorem tax at a rate sufficient to 
produce taxes in the amount determined in paragraph (b) above, to be utilized for 
purposes of paying the principal of and interest on the Certificates in the next 
succeeding Fiscal Year of the City. 
 
 If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner 
permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be 
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to 
the Interest and Sinking Fund may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts 
may permit.  In determining the aggregate principal amount of outstanding Certificates, 
there shall be subtracted the amount of any Certificates that have been duly called for 
redemption and for which money has been deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar 
for such redemption. 
 
 Section 2.02.  Revenue Pledge. 
 
 (a)  The Certificates are additionally secured by and shall be payable from a 
limited pledge, not to exceed $1,000, of the Surplus Revenues of the City’s Waterworks 
and Sewer System, such pledge authorized pursuant to Chapter 1502, Texas 
Government Code, as amended.  Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 2.01, if 
Surplus Revenues are actually on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund in advance 
of the time when ad valorem taxes are scheduled to be levied for any year, then the 
amount of taxes which otherwise would be required to be levied pursuant to Section 
2.01 may be reduced to the extent and by the amount of the Surplus Revenues then on 
deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund.   
 

00807088;1 Page 5 



 (b)  The Surplus Revenues, when and as received by the City, are hereby 
pledged to the payment of the Certificates and shall be deposited into the Interest and 
Sinking Fund.   
 
 Section 2.03.  Effect of Pledge. 
 
 Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, as amended, applies to the issuance of 
the Certificates and the pledge of the combination of taxes and revenues thereof 
granted by the City under Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of this Ordinance, and such pledge is 
therefore valid, effective, and perfected.  If Texas law is amended at any time while the 
Certificates are outstanding and unpaid such that the pledge of the combination of taxes 
and revenues granted by the City under Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of this Ordinance is to 
be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, 
then in order to preserve to the Registered Owners of the Certificates the perfection of 
the security interest in said pledge, the City agrees to take such measures as it 
determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the 
applicable provisions of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, as amended, 
and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said pledge to occur. 
 
 Section 2.04.  Interest and Sinking Fund. 
 
 (a) The City hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated 
the "City of Leander, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, 
Series 2015 Interest and Sinking Fund" (the "Interest and Sinking Fund") said fund to be 
maintained at an official depository bank of the City separate and apart from all other 
funds and accounts of the City. 
 
 (b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the 
Interest and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on, 
redemption premium, if any, and principal of the Certificates when and as due and 
payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 2.05.  Construction Fund. 
 
 (a) A special fund or account, to be designated the “City of Leander, Texas 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015 Construction 
Fund” (the "Construction Fund") is hereby created and shall be established and 
maintained by the City at the official City depository.  The Construction Fund shall be 
kept separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the City.  The proceeds 
from the sale of the Certificates (other than proceeds representing accrued interest on 
the Certificates and any premium on the Certificates that is not used to pay costs of 
issuance in which shall be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund) shall be 
deposited in the Construction Fund and payments therefrom shall be used solely for the 
purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the (1) construction of City-
wide road and street improvements and the acquisition of rights-of-way and easements 
therefor, (2) construction, acquisition and installation of additions, improvements and 

00807088;1 Page 6 



extensions to the City's Waterworks and Sewer System, (3) construction and equipping 
of two fire stations and the acquisition of sites therefor [site 1 in the North Central part of 
the City and site 2 in the East Central part of the City], (4) construction of park and 
recreational improvements on City park land, (5) acquisition of land for a new City park 
in the vicinity of U.S. Highway 183 and the South Fork San Gabriel River, and (6) 
payment of professional services and costs of issuance related thereto (the “Project”). 
 
 (b) Surplus Construction Funds.  Any moneys remaining in the Construction 
Fund after completion of the entirety of the Project shall be deposited in the Interest and 
Sinking Fund. 
 
 Section 2.06.  Security of Funds. 
 
 All moneys on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund and the Construction 
Fund for which this Ordinance makes provision (except any portion thereof as may be at 
any time properly invested) shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent 
required by the laws of the State of Texas for the security of City funds, and moneys on 
deposit in such funds shall be used only for the purposes permitted by this Ordinance. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION:  GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 
REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES 

 
 
 Section 3.01.  Authorization. 
 
 The City's certificates of obligation to be designated "City of Leander, Texas 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015" (the 
"Certificates"), are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas.  The Certificates shall be issued in the 
aggregate principal amount of $___________ for the purpose of paying contractual 
obligations to be incurred for the (1) construction of City-wide road and street 
improvements and the acquisition of rights-of-way and easements therefor, (2) 
construction, acquisition and installation of additions, improvements and extensions to 
the City's Waterworks and Sewer System, (3) construction and equipping of two fire 
stations and the acquisition of sites therefor [site 1 in the North Central part of the City 
and site 2 in the East Central part of the City], (4) construction of park and recreational 
improvements on City park land, (5) acquisition of land for a new City park in the vicinity 
of U.S. Highway 183 and the South Fork San Gabriel River, and (6) payment of 
professional services and costs of issuance related thereto. 
 

00807088;1 Page 7 



 Section 3.02.  Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest. 
 
 (a) The Certificates shall be dated January 15, 2015 and shall bear interest 
on the unpaid principal amount thereof from the Date of Delivery (anticipated to be 
February 19, 2015) (which date shall be noted on the Certificates).  The Certificates 
shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof and shall be numbered separately from R-1 upward, except the 
Initial Certificate, which shall be numbered T-1. 
 
 (b) The Certificates shall mature on August 15 in the years and in the 
principal amounts and bear interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following 
schedule: 
 
Year of Principal Interest Year of Principal Interest 
Maturity Installments   Rate   Maturity Installments   Rate   
 
 2017 $   ________ _.___% 2027 $________ _.___% 
 2018 ________ _.___% 2028 ________ _.___% 
 2019 ________ _.___% 2029 ________ _.___% 
 2020 ________ _.___% 2030 ________ _.___% 
 2021 ________ _.___% 2031 ________ _.___% 
 2022 ________ _.___% 2032 ________ _.___% 
 2023 ________ _.___% 2033 ________ _.___% 
 2024 ________ _.___% 2034 ________ _.___% 
 2025 ________ _.___% 2035 ________ _.___% 
 2026 ________ _.___%    
  
 (c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate respectively until its 
redemption or prior maturity from the later of the Date of Delivery or from the most 
recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for at the 
rates per annum for each respective maturity specified in the schedule contained in 
subsection (b) above.  Such interest shall be payable on February 15 and August 15 of 
each year, commencing on February 15, 2016, computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months. 
 
 Section 3.03.  Medium, Method and Place of Payment. 
 
 (a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the 
Certificates shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America. 
 
 (b) Interest on the Certificates shall be payable to the Owner whose name 
appears in the Register at the close of business on the last business day of the month 
preceding such Interest Payment Date (the "Record Date"); provided, however, that in 
the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date, and for 
thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (the "Special 
Record Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar (hereinafter defined 
and designated) if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received 
from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of 

00807088;1 Page 8 



the past due interest (the "Special Payment Date," which shall be at least 15 days after 
the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the 
Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address 
of each Owner of a Certificate appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at 
the close of business on the last business day preceding the date of mailing of such 
notice. 
 
 (c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of the Interest Payment Date, 
and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, first class United States mail, 
postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register, or by such 
other customary banking arrangements acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and 
each Owner to whom interest is to be paid; provided, however, that the Owner shall 
bear all risk and expenses of such customary banking arrangements. 
 
 (d) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the 
due date (whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof) upon 
presentation and surrender of such Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer 
Office. 
 
 (e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates 
shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the 
city where the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by law or 
executive  order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding 
day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or day on which banking 
institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall for all 
purposes be deemed to have been made on the due date thereof as specified in this 
Section. 
 
 Section 3.04.  Control, Execution and Initial Registration. 
 
 (a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor and 
the City Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the 
City shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the 
Certificates shall have the same effect as if each of the Certificates had been signed 
manually and in person by each of said officers, and such facsimile seal on the 
Certificates shall have the same effect as if the official seal of the City had been 
manually impressed upon each of the Certificates. 
 
 (b) In the event that any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile 
signature appears on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication 
of such Certificates or before the delivery thereof, such facsimile signature nevertheless 
shall be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such 
office. 
 
 (c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for 
any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until 

00807088;1 Page 9 



there appears thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form 
provided herein, duly authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized 
signatory of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  It shall not be required that the same officer or 
authorized signatory of the Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying 
Agent/Registrar on all of the Certificates.  In lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying 
Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Certificate delivered at the Closing Date 
shall have attached thereto the Comptroller's Registration Certificate substantially in the 
form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the 
State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which certificate shall be evidence that 
the Initial Certificate has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of 
Texas and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City, and has been registered 
by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 
 
 (d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Certificate representing the entire principal 
amount of all Certificates, payable in stated installment to the Underwriters, or their 
Representative, manually signed by the Mayor and City Secretary, approved by the 
Attorney General, and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, will be delivered to the Underwriters or their Representative.  Upon payment 
for the Initial Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Certificate 
and deliver registered definitive Certificates in accordance with instructions received 
from the Underwriters or their Representative. 
 
 Section 3.05.  Ownership. 
 
 (a)  The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the 
person in whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such 
Certificate for the purpose of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof and 
redemption premium (subject to the provisions herein that interest is to be paid to the 
person in whose name the Certificate is registered on the Record Date), if any, thereon, 
for the further purpose of making and receiving payment of the interest thereon, and for 
all other purposes, whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and neither the City nor 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. 
 
 (b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and 
effectual and shall discharge the liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar 
upon such Certificate to the extent of the sums paid. 
 
 Section 3.06.  Registration, Transfer and Exchange. 
 
 (a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the City shall cause the 
Paying Agent/Registrar to keep at its Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register 
(the "Register") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the registration and transfer of Certificates in 
accordance with this Ordinance. 
 

00807088;1 Page 10 



 (b) Registration of any Certificate may be transferred in the Register only 
upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar for transfer of registration and cancellation, together with 
proper written instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of the Certificates, or 
any portion thereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the assignee or assignees 
thereof, and the right of such assignee or assignees thereof to have the Certificate or 
any portion thereof registered in the name of such assignee or assignees.  No transfer 
of any Certificate shall be effective until entered in the Register.  Upon assignment and 
transfer of any Certificate or portion thereof, a new Certificate or Certificates will be 
issued by the Paying Agent/Registrar in conversion and exchange for such transferred 
and assigned Certificate.  To the extent possible, the Paying Agent/Registrar will issue 
such new Certificate or Certificates in not more than three (3) business days after 
receipt of the Certificate to be transferred in proper form and with proper instructions 
directing such transfer. 
 
 (c) Any Certificate may be converted and exchanged only upon the 
presentation and surrender thereof at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the 
Owner or assignee or assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or 
representatives, with guarantees of signatures satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, for a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and interest rate 
and in any authorized denomination and in an aggregate principal or maturity amount 
equal to the unpaid principal or maturity amount of the Certificate presented for 
exchange.  If a portion of any Certificate is redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity as 
provided herein, a substitute Certificate or Certificates having the same maturity date, 
bearing interest at the same rate, in the denomination or denominations of any integral 
multiple of $5,000 at the request of the Owner, and in an aggregate principal amount 
equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the Owner upon surrender 
thereof for cancellation.  To the extent possible, a new Certificate or Certificates will be 
required to be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Owner of the Certificate or 
Certificates in not more than three (3) business days after receipt of the Certificate to be 
exchanged in proper form and with proper instructions directing such exchange. 
 
 (d) Each Certificate issued in exchange for any Certificate or portion thereof 
assigned, transferred or converted shall have the same principal maturity date and bear 
interest at the same rate as the Certificate for which it is being exchanged.  Each 
substitute Certificate shall bear a letter and/or number to distinguish it from each other 
Certificate.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall convert and exchange the Certificates as 
provided herein, and each substitute Certificate delivered in accordance with this 
Section shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall 
be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the 
Certificate or Certificates in lieu of which such substitute Certificate is delivered. 
 
 (e) The City will pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's reasonable and customary 
charge for the initial registration or any subsequent transfer, exchange or conversion of 

00807088;1 Page 11 



Certificates, but the Paying Agent/Registrar will require the Owner to pay a sum 
sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be 
imposed in connection with the registration, transfer, exchange or conversion of a 
Certificate.  In addition, the City hereby covenants with the Owners of the Certificates 
that it will (i) pay the reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for its services with respect to the payment of the principal of 
and interest on the Certificates, when due, and (ii) pay the fees and charges of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for services with respect to the transfer, registration, conversion 
and exchange of Certificates as provided herein. 
 
 (f) Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 
forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation 
shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled balance of a 
Certificate. 
 
 Section 3.07.  Cancellation. 
 
 (a) All Certificates paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance 
with this Ordinance, and all Certificates in lieu of which exchange Certificates or 
replacement Certificates are authenticated and delivered in accordance with this 
Ordinance, shall be canceled and destroyed upon the making of proper records 
regarding such payment, redemption, exchange or replacement. The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall periodically furnish the City with certificates of destruction of such 
Certificates. 
 
 (b) Each substitute Certificate issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of (pursuant to the provisions of Sections 3.06, 3.08 and 3.09 hereof) any 
Certificate or Certificates issued under this Ordinance shall have printed thereon a 
Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar, in the form hereinafter set forth.  An authorized 
representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such 
Certificate, manually sign and date such Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar, and no 
such Certificate shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless such Certificate of 
Paying Agent/Registrar is so executed.  No additional ordinances, orders, or resolutions 
need be passed or adopted by the City Council or any other body or person so as to 
accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or replacement of any Certificate or 
portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the printing, execution 
and delivery of the substitute Certificates in the manner prescribed herein, and said 
Certificates shall be of customary type and composition and be printed on paper with 
lithographed or steel engraved borders of customary weight and strength.  Pursuant to 
Subchapter D of Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, the duty of conversion and 
exchange or replacement of Certificates as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of the above Certificate of Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the converted and exchanged or replaced Certificates shall be valid, 
incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the 

00807088;1 Page 12 



Initial Certificate which was originally delivered pursuant to this Ordinance, approved by 
the Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts. 
 
 (c) Certificates issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any 
other Certificate or portion thereof (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without 
interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Certificates to be payable 
only to the Owners thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) 
may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other 
Certificates, (v) shall have the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed and sealed, and (vii) 
the principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be payable, all as provided, and in 
the manner required or indicated, in the Form of Certificates set forth in this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.08.  Temporary Certificates. 
 
 (a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Certificate and pending 
the preparation of definitive Certificates, the City may execute and, upon the City's 
request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more 
temporary Certificates that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed or 
otherwise produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive 
Certificates in lieu of which they are delivered, without coupons, and with such 
appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as the officers of 
the City executing such temporary Certificates may determine, as evidenced by their 
signing of such temporary Certificates. 
 
 (b) Until exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, such Certificates in 
temporary form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance. 
 
 (c) The City, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver 
to the Paying Agent/Registrar, and thereupon, upon the presentation and surrender of 
the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate 
or Certificates of the same maturity and series, in definitive form, in the authorized 
denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Certificate or 
Certificates in temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made without the 
making of any charge therefor to any Owner. 
 
 Section 3.09.  Replacement Certificates. 
 
 (a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a 
mutilated Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in 
exchange therefor a replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, bearing 
a number not contemporaneously outstanding.  The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar 
may require the Owner of such Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection therewith and 
any other expenses connected herewith. 
 

00807088;1 Page 13 



 (b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully 
taken, the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas 
and in the absence of notice or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a 
bona fide purchaser, shall authenticate and deliver a replacement Certificate of like 
tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, 
provided that the Owner first complies with the following requirements: 
 

(i)  furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her 
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction or theft of such 
Certificate; 

 
(ii)  furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and acceptable to the City, to save the Paying Agent/Registrar 
and the City harmless; 

 
(iii)  pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar and any 
tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 

 
(iv)  satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the City and Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

 
 (c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser 
of the original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued 
presents for payment such original Certificate, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall be entitled to recover such replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was 
delivered or any person taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be 
entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any 
loss, damage, cost or expense incurred by the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar in 
connection therewith. 
 
 (d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed or 
wrongfully taken Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, 
may pay such Certificate. 
 
 (e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section 
shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall be 
entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the 
Certificate or Certificates in lieu of which such replacement Certificate is delivered. 
 
 Section 3.10.  Book-Entry-Only System. 
 
 (a) The definitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a separate 
single fully registered Certificate for each of the maturities thereof.  Upon initial 
issuance, the ownership of each such Certificate shall be registered in the name of 

00807088;1 Page 14 



Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and except as provided in Section 3.11 hereof, all of 
the outstanding Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
of DTC. 
 
 (b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or 
obligation to any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC 
Participant holds an interest in the Certificates, except as provided in this Ordinance.  
Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy 
of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or any DTC Participant with respect to any 
ownership interest in the Certificates, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any 
other person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, of any notice with respect 
to the Certificates, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC 
Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown in the Register of any 
amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name 
each Certificate is registered in the Register as the absolute Owner of such Certificate 
for the purpose of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with 
respect to such Certificate, for the purpose of registering transfer with respect to such 
Certificate, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates only to or upon the 
order of the respective Owners, as shown in the Register as provided in this Ordinance, 
or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be 
valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City's obligations with respect to 
payment of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates to the extent of the sum or 
sums so paid.  No person other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall receive 
a certificate evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of amounts due 
pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of 
written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in 
place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this Ordinance with respect to 
interest checks or drafts being mailed to the Registered Owner at the close of business 
on the Record Date, the word "Cede & Co." in this Ordinance shall refer to such new 
nominee of DTC. 
 
 Section 3.11.  Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-
Only System. 
 
 In the event that the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar determines that DTC is 
incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representation 
Letter by and between the City, the Paying Agent/Registrar and DTC (the 
"Representation Letter"), and that it is in the best interest of the Owners of the 
Certificates that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates, or in the event DTC 
discontinues the services described herein, the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 

00807088;1 Page 15 



(i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 
17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; notify DTC and DTC 
Participants, as identified by DTC, of the appointment of such successor securities 
depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor securities 
depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants, as identified by DTC, of the 
availability through DTC of Certificates and transfer one or more separate Certificates to 
DTC Participants having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts, as identified by 
DTC.  In such event, the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in 
the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in 
the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or 
names Owners transferring or exchanging Certificates shall designate, in accordance 
with the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.12.  Payments to Cede & Co. 
 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as 
any Certificates are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all 
payments with respect to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Certificates, 
and all notices with respect to such Certificates, shall be made and given, respectively, 
in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 
 
 Section 3.13.  Additional Obligations. 
 
 The City reserves the right to issue any additional obligations authorized by law 
and such obligations may be payable from ad valorem taxes within the limits prescribed 
by law, which may or may not be additionally secured by the Surplus Revenues of the 
City’s Waterworks and Sewer System.  The City further reserves the right to issue any 
additional obligations secured by the net revenues on the City’s Waterworks and Sewer 
System, which are senior to the lien and pledge of the Surplus Revenues securing 
payment of the Certificates. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY 
 
 Section 4.01.  Limitation on Redemption. 
 
 The Certificates shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as 
provided in this Article IV. 
 
 Section 4.02.  Optional Redemption. 
 
 The City reserves the option to redeem Certificates maturing on and after August 
15, 20__, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on 
August 15, 20__, or on any date thereafter (such redemption dates to be fixed by the 

00807088;1 Page 16 



City), at a price equal to the principal amount of the Certificates to be called for 
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. 
 
 At least forty-five (45) days prior to an optional redemption date for the 
Certificates (unless a shorter notification period shall be satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), the City shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of the decision to 
redeem Certificates, the principal amount of each stated maturity to be redeemed, and 
the date of redemption therefor.  
 

Section 4.03.  Mandatory Redemption.   
 

The Certificates maturing in the years 20__ and 20__ (the "Term Certificates") 
are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity at the price of par and accrued 
interest and shall be redeemed, in part, on the date and in the principal amount set forth 
below: 
 
 $_________ Term Certificates Due August 15, 20__ 
 
 August 15, ____ $________ 
 August 15, ____ $________  (Maturity) 
 
 $_______Term Certificates Due August 15, 20__ 
 
 August 15, ____ $________ 
 August 15, ____ $________ 
 August 15, ____ $________  (Maturity) 
 
 

 
At least forty-five days prior to each mandatory redemption date specified above 

that the Term Certificates are to be mandatorily redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall select by lot the numbers of the Term Certificates within the applicable maturity to 
be redeemed on the next following August 15 from moneys set aside for that purpose in 
the Interest and Sinking Fund.  Any Term Certificates not selected for prior redemption 
shall be paid on the date of their stated maturity. 
 

The principal amount of the Term Certificates required to be redeemed pursuant 
to the operation of such mandatory redemption provisions may be reduced, at the 
option of the City, by the principal amount of the Term Certificates of the same maturity 
which at least fifty (50) days prior to a mandatory redemption date (i) shall have been 
defeased or acquired by the City at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such 
Term Certificates plus accrued interest to the date of purchase and delivered to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation or (ii) shall have been purchased and canceled 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the City with money in the Interest and 
Sinking Fund. 
 

00807088;1 Page 17 



 Section 4.04.  Partial Redemption. 
 
 (a) If less than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed and if less than all of 
a maturity is to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall determine by lot the 
Certificates, or portions thereof, within such maturity to be redeemed. 
 
 (b) A portion of a single Certificate of a denomination greater than $5,000 
may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof.  If such a Certificate is to be partially redeemed, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000 portion of the Certificate as though it were a 
single Certificate for purposes of selection for redemption. 
 
 (c) Upon surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate 
and deliver an exchange Certificate or Certificates in an aggregate principal amount 
equal to the unredeemed portion of the Certificate so surrendered, such exchange 
being without charge, notwithstanding any provision of Section 3.06 to the contrary. 
 
 (d) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the City in writing of the 
principal amount to be redeemed of any Certificate as to which only a portion thereof is 
to be redeemed. 
 
 Section 4.05.  Notice of Redemption to Owners. 
 
 (a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of 
Certificates by sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less 
than thirty (30) days before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each 
Certificate (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the address shown on the Register. 
 
 (b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place 
at which the Certificates are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the 
Certificates outstanding are to be redeemed, an identification of the Certificates or 
portions thereof to be redeemed. 
 
 (c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively 
presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 
 
 Section 4.06.  Payment Upon Redemption. 
 
 (a) Before or on each redemption date, the City shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Certificates to be 
redeemed on such date by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts received by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar from the City and shall use such funds solely for the 
purpose of paying the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on 
the Certificates being redeemed. 

00807088;1 Page 18 



 
 (b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate called for redemption 
at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the 
date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on such Certificates to the date of 
redemption from the money set aside for such purpose. 
 
 Section 4.07.  Effect of Redemption. 
 
 (a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this 
Ordinance, the Certificates or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due 
and payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the City defaults in its 
obligation to make provision for the payment of the principal thereof, redemption 
premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon, such Certificates or portions thereof shall 
cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not such 
Certificates are presented and surrendered for payment on such date. 
 
 (b) If the City shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a 
redemption date, then any Certificate or portion thereof called for redemption shall 
continue to bear interest at the rate stated on the Certificate until paid or until due 
provision is made for the payment of same by the City. 
 
 Section 4.08.  Lapse of Payment. 
 
 (a) Money set aside for the redemption of Certificates and remaining 
unclaimed by the Owners of such Certificates after the redemption date shall be 
segregated in a special escrow account and held in trust, uninvested, without interest, 
for the account of such Owners. 
 
 (b) Amounts held by the Paying Agent, which represent principal of and 
interest on the Certificates remaining unclaimed by the Owner after the expiration of 
three years from the date such amounts have become due and payable, shall be 
reported and disposed of by the Paying Agent in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of Texas law including, to the extent applicable, Title 6 of the Texas Property 
Code, as amended. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 
 
 Section 5.01.  Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 
 (a) The City hereby appoints BOKF, NA dba Bank of Texas, Austin, Texas, as 
its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such transfers 
and registrations under such reasonable regulations as the City and the Paying 

00807088;1 Page 19 



Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such 
transfers and registrations as herein provided.  It shall be the duty of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to obtain from the Owners and record in the Register the address of 
such Owner of each Certificate to which payments with respect to the Certificates shall 
be mailed, as provided herein.  The City or its designee shall have the right to inspect 
the Register during regular business hours of the Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration Books confidential and, unless 
otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other entity. 
 
 (b) The City hereby further appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the 
paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Certificates.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made by the City and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Certificates, and of all conversions, 
exchanges and replacements of such Certificates, as provided in the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 5.02.  Qualifications. 
 
 Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be (i) a banking corporation, a banking 
association or a financial institution organized and doing business under the laws of the 
United States or of any state thereof, (ii) authorized under such laws to exercise trust 
powers and (iii) subject to supervision or examination by a federal or state governmental 
authority. 
 
 Section 5.03.  Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 
 (a) At all times while any Certificates are outstanding, the City will maintain a 
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The 
Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar specifying the duties and responsibilities of the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  The signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary. 
 
 (b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as 
such, the City will promptly appoint a replacement. 
 
 Section 5.04.  Termination. 
 
 The City, upon not less than sixty (60) days notice, reserves the right to terminate 
the appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose 
appointment is to be terminated written notice of such termination. 
 
 Section 5.05.  Notice of Change to Owners. 
 
 Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the 
City will cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by first class United 
States mail, postage prepaid, at the address in the Register, stating the effective date of 

00807088;1 Page 20 



the change and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 
 
 Section 5.06.  Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions. 
 
 By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar is deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Ordinance and that it 
will perform the duties and functions of Paying Agent/Registrar prescribed thereby. 
 
 Section 5.07.  Delivery of Records to Successor. 
 
 If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly 
upon the appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and 
all other pertinent books and records relating to the Certificates to the successor Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 
 
 Section 6.01.  Form Generally. 
 
 (a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and 
the Assignment form to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be substantially in 
the form set forth in this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, 
substitutions, and other variations as are permitted or required by this Ordinance, and 
(ii) may have such letters, numbers, or other marks of identification (including identifying 
numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of 
the American Bankers Association) and such legends and endorsements (including any 
reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, consistently herewith, may be 
determined by the City or by the officers executing such Certificates, as evidenced by 
their execution thereof. 
 
 (b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse 
side thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates. 
 
 (c) The Certificates shall be typed, printed, lithographed, or engraved, and 
may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced in any other similar 
manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Certificates, as evidenced by 
their execution thereof. 
 
 (d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State of 
Texas may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced. 
 

00807088;1 Page 21 



 Section 6.02.  Form of the Certificates. 
 
 The form of the Certificates, including the form of the Registration Certificate of 
the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Certificates, shall 
be substantially as follows: 
 
 (a) Form of Certificate. 
 
 
REGISTERED REGISTERED 
 
No. R-_____ $_________ 
 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 
SERIES 2015 

 
Dated Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP No.:   
 
January 15, 2015 ______ _____________  ____________ 
 
Date of Delivery:  _____________ 
 
Registered Owner:  
 
Principal Amount:  DOLLARS 
 
 THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS (hereinafter referred to as the "City"), for value 
received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the order of 
the Registered Owner named above, or the registered assigns thereof, on the Stated 
Maturity date specified above the Principal Amount hereinabove stated (or so much 
thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption), and to pay interest on the 
unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Date of Delivery at the per annum rate of 
interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 
months; such interest being payable on February 15 and August 15 in each year, 
commencing February 15, 2016.  Principal of this Certificate is payable at its Stated 
Maturity or redemption to the Registered Owner hereof, upon presentation and 
surrender, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
executing the registration certificate appearing hereon, or its successor.  Interest is 
payable to the Registered Owner of this Certificate whose name appears on the 
"Register" maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the 
"Record Date," which is the last business day of the month next preceding each Interest 

00807088;1 Page 22 



Payment Date, and interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent 
by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of the Registered 
Owner recorded in the Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the Registered Owner.  
All payments of principal of and interest on this Certificate shall be without exchange or 
collection charges to the Registered Owner hereof and in any coin or currency of the 
United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of 
public and private debts. 
 
 THIS CERTIFICATE IS ONE OF A SERIES of fully registered Certificates 
specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $_________ 
(herein referred to as the "Certificates"), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the 
City (the "Ordinance") for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred 
for (1) construction of City-wide road and street improvements and the acquisition of 
rights-of-way and easements therefor, (2) construction, acquisition and installation of 
additions, improvements and extensions to the City's Waterworks and Sewer System, 
(3) construction and equipping of two fire stations and the acquisition of sites therefor 
[site 1 in the North Central part of the City and site 2 in the East Central part of the City], 
(4) construction of park and recreational improvements on City park land, (5) acquisition 
of land for a new City park in the vicinity of U.S. Highway 183 and the South Fork San 
Gabriel River, and (6) payment of professional services and costs of issuance related 
thereto.   
 
 THE CERTIFICATES maturing on and after August 15, 20__ may be redeemed 
prior to their Stated Maturities, at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in principal 
amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity 
selected by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar), on August 15, 20__, or on any date 
thereafter, at the redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption and upon 30 days prior written notice being sent by United States mail, first 
class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owners of the Certificates to be redeemed, 
and subject to the terms and provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance. 
 

THE CERTIFICATES maturing in the years 20__ and 20__ (the "Term 
Certificates") are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity at the price of par 
and accrued interest and shall be redeemed, in part, on the date and in the principal 
amount set forth below: 
 
 $_________ Term Certificates Due August 15, 20__ 
 
 August 15, ____ $________ 
 August 15, ____ $________  (Maturity) 
 

00807088;1 Page 23 



 $_______Term Certificates Due August 15, 20__ 
 
 August 15, ____ $________ 
 August 15, ____ $________ 
 August 15, ____ $________  (Maturity) 
 

AT LEAST FORTY-FIVE DAYS prior to each mandatory redemption date 
specified above that the Term Certificates are to be mandatorily redeemed, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall select by lot the numbers of the Term Certificates within the 
applicable maturity to be redeemed on the next following August 15 from moneys set 
aside for that purpose in the Interest and Sinking Fund.  Any Term Certificates not 
selected for prior redemption shall be paid on the date of their stated maturity. 
 

THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE TERM CERTIFICATES required to be 
redeemed pursuant to the operation of such mandatory redemption provisions may be 
reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of the Term Certificates of the 
same maturity which at least fifty (50) days prior to a mandatory redemption date (i) 
shall have been defeased or acquired by the City at a price not exceeding the principal 
amount of such Term Certificates plus accrued interest to the date of purchase and 
delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation or (ii) shall have been 
purchased and canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the City with 
money in the Interest and Sinking Fund. 
 
 IF THIS CERTIFICATE (or any portion of the principal sum hereof) shall have 
been duly called for redemption and notice of such redemption duly given, then upon 
such redemption date this Certificate (or the portion of the principal sum hereof to be 
redeemed) shall become due and payable, and interest thereon shall cease to accrue 
from and after the redemption date therefor, provided moneys for the payment of the 
redemption price and the interest on the principal amount to be redeemed to the date of 
redemption are held for the purpose of such payment by the Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 
 IN THE EVENT OF A PARTIAL REDEMPTION of the principal amount of this 
Certificate, payment of the redemption price of such principal amount shall be made to 
the Registered Owner only upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar at its Designated Payment/Transfer Office, and there shall be 
issued to the Registered Owner hereof, without charge, a new Certificate or Certificates 
of like maturity and interest rate in any authorized denominations provided by the 
Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum hereof.  If this 
Certificate is selected for redemption, in whole or in part, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall not be required to transfer this Certificate to an assignee of the 
Registered Owner within 45 days of the redemption date therefor; provided, however, 
such limitation on transferability shall not be applicable to an exchange by the 
Registered Owner of the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in 
part. 
 

00807088;1 Page 24 



 THE CERTIFICATES are payable from the levy of a direct and continuing ad 
valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, against all taxable property in the City, 
and from a limited pledge, not to exceed $1,000, of Surplus Revenues (as defined in the 
Ordinance) from the City's Waterworks and Sewer System.  Reference is hereby made 
to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the Designated Payment/Transfer Office 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the Registered 
Owner or Holder of this Certificate by the acceptance hereof hereby assents, for 
definitions of terms; the description of and the nature and extent of the tax levied and 
the revenue pledged for the payment of the Certificates; the terms and conditions 
relating to the transfer or exchange of this Certificate; the rights, duties, and obligations 
of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon which this 
Certificate may be discharged at or prior to its maturity, and deemed to be no longer 
outstanding thereunder; and for other terms and provisions contained therein.  
Capitalized terms used herein have the meanings assigned in the Ordinance. 
 
 THIS CERTIFICATE, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, 
may be transferred on the Register only upon its presentation and surrender at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, with the 
Assignment hereon duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of 
transfer in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by, the 
Registered Owner hereof, or his duly authorized agent.  When a transfer on the 
Register occurs, one or more new fully registered Certificates of the same Stated 
Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the 
same aggregate principal amount will be issued by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the 
designated transferee or transferees. 
 
 THE CITY AND THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR, and any agent of either, 
shall treat the Registered Owner whose name appears on the Register (i) on the Record 
Date as the owner entitled to payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of 
this Certificate as the owner entitled to payment of principal at the Stated Maturity, or its 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner for all other 
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, 
shall be affected by notice to the contrary.  In the event of nonpayment of interest on a 
Certificate on a scheduled payment date and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new 
record date for such interest payment (a "Special Record Date") will be established by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have 
been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled 
payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record 
Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by 
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered 
Owner of a Certificate appearing on the Register at the close of business on the last 
business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this Certificate 
and the series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions and 
things to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this Certificate and the series of 

00807088;1 Page 25 



which it is a part, have been properly done, have happened and have been performed 
in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; that proper provisions 
have been made for the levy and collection annually of taxes upon all taxable property 
in said City sufficient within the limits prescribed by law, and from a limited pledge of 
Surplus Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) from the City's Waterworks and Sewer 
System, to pay the interest on this Certificate and the series of which it is a part as due 
and to provide for the payment of the principal as the same matures; and that the total 
indebtedness of the City, including the Certificates, does not exceed any constitutional 
or statutory limitation. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Certificate to be executed by 
the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the City has 
been duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Certificate. 
 
 
         
       Mayor  
       City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
       
City Secretary 
City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 (b) Form of Comptroller's Registration Certificate. 
 
 The following Comptroller's Registration Certificate may be deleted from the 
definitive Certificates if such certificate on the Initial Certificate is fully executed. 
 
 
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER § 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS      §  REGISTER NO. _____________ 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
 I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a Certificate of the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Certificate has been 
examined by him as required by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity 
with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and that this Certificate has this 
day been registered by me. 
 
 Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, ________________. 

00807088;1 Page 26 



 
 
         
[SEAL]      Comptroller of Public Accounts 
          of the State of Texas 
 
 
 (c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 
 The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the 
Initial Certificate if the Comptroller's Registration Certificate appears thereon. 
 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 
 
 The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Certificate of this 
series of Certificates was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and 
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is 
one of the Certificates referred to in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 
 
      BOKF, NA dba Bank of Texas 
      Austin, Texas 
      as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
Dated: _________________  By:         
            Authorized Signatory 
 
 
 (d) Form of Assignment. 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto/   
     /  
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code, of Transferee)  
                                                                            the within Certificate and all rights 
(Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number) 
thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints                            , attorney, 
to register the transfer of the within Certificate on the books kept for registration thereof, 
with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 
Dated:     
 
Signature Guaranteed By: 
 
 

00807088;1 Page 27 



       
Authorized Signatory   NOTICE:  The signature on this 

Assignment must correspond with the 
name of the Registered Owner as it 
appears on the face of the within 
Certificate in every particular and must 
be guaranteed by an officer of a federal 
or state bank or a member of the 
National Association of Securities 
Dealers 

 
 
 (e) Form of Initial Certificate. 
 
  Heading and paragraph one shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
REGISTERED 
No. T-1  $_____________ 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF TEXAS 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 
SERIES 2015 

 
Dated Date:   
 
January 15, 2015 
 
Date of Delivery: ______________  
 
Registered Owner: 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
 THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS (hereinafter referred to as the "City"), for value 
received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the order of 
the Registered Owner named above, or the registered assigns thereof, the Principal 
Amount hereinabove stated on August 15 in the years and in principal installments in 
accordance with the following schedule: 
 
 YEAR OF  PRINCIPAL INTEREST 
 MATURITY INSTALLMENTS    RATE    
 

(Information to be inserted from 

00807088;1 Page 28 



schedule in Section 3.02(b) hereof.) 
 
(or so much principal thereof as shall not have been prepaid prior to maturity) and to 
pay interest on the unpaid principal installments hereof from the Date of Delivery at the 
per annum rates of interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of 
twelve 30-day months; such interest being payable on February 15 and August 15 in 
each year, commencing February 15, 2016.  Principal installments of this Certificate are 
payable in the year of maturity or on a prepayment date to the Registered Owner hereof 
by BOKF, NA dba Bank of Texas (the "Paying Agent/Registrar"), upon presentation and 
surrender, at its principal offices in Austin, Texas (the “Designated Payment/Transfer 
Office”).  Interest is payable to the Registered Owner of this Certificate whose name 
appears on the "Register" maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of 
business on the "Record Date," which is the last business day of the month next 
preceding each Interest Payment Date, and interest shall be paid by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by check sent by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the 
address of the Registered Owner recorded in the Register or by such other method, 
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, 
the Registered Owner.  All payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this 
Certificate shall be without exchange or collection charges to the Registered Owner 
hereof and in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of 
payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 
 
 (f) Form of Statement of Insurance.  A statement relating to a municipal bond 
insurance policy, if any, to be issued for the Certificates may be printed on each 
Certificate.  
 
 Section 6.03.  CUSIP Registration. 
 
 The City may secure identification numbers ("CUSIP Numbers") and may 
authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Certificates.  It is expressly 
provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP Numbers on the Certificates 
shall be of no significance or effect as regards the legality thereof and neither the City 
nor the attorneys approving said Certificates as to legality are to be held responsible for 
CUSIP Numbers incorrectly printed on the Certificates. 
 
 Section 6.04.  Legal Opinion. 
 
 The approving legal opinion of Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP, Bond 
Counsel, may be printed on the reverse side of each Certificate, or may be attached to 
each Certificate. 
 
 

00807088;1 Page 29 



ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES, 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS 

 
 Section 7.01.   Approval of Documents. 
 
 The form and content of the Purchase Contract relating to the Certificates is 
hereby approved. 
 
 Section 7.02.  Sale of the Certificates. 
 
 (a) The Certificates are hereby sold and shall be delivered to the Underwriters 
at a price of $_________ (representing the par amount of the Certificates of 
$__________, plus a net original reoffering premium of $___________, less an 
Underwriters’ discount of $_________), pursuant to the terms and provisions of the 
Purchase Contract of even date herewith, presented to and hereby approved by the City 
Council, which price and terms are hereby found and determined to be the most 
advantageous reasonably obtainable by the City.  The Mayor and other appropriate 
officials of the City are hereby authorized and directed to execute such Purchase 
Contract on behalf of the City, and the Mayor and all other officers, agents and 
representatives of the City are hereby authorized to do any and all things necessary or 
desirable to satisfy the conditions set out therein and to provide for the issuance and 
delivery of the Certificates.  The Initial Certificate shall be registered in the name of 
________. 
 
 (b) Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates shall be applied as follows: 
 

   (1) $_________ to the Construction Fund consisting of $_________ 
from the par amount of the Certificates and $_________ from 
premium; and 

 
(2) $_________ premium to pay the costs of issuance, consisting of: 
 

    $________ of general costs of issuance; 
    $________ of Underwriters’ Discount; and 
    $________ of Rounding Amount to the 

Interest and Sinking Fund. 
 
 Section 7.03.  Approval of Official Statement. 
 
 The form and substance of the Official Statement for the Certificates and any 
addenda, supplement or amendment thereto (the "Official Statement") presented to and 
considered at this meeting is hereby in all respects approved and adopted.  The Mayor 
and the City Secretary are hereby authorized and directed to execute the same and 
deliver appropriate numbers of executed copies thereof and of any closing certificates to 

00807088;1 Page 30 



the Underwriters.  The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement by the 
Underwriters is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed and is hereby deemed final as 
of its date (except for the omission of pricing and related information) within the 
meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, by the City Council.  The Underwriters are hereby 
authorized to use and distribute the Official Statement in the re-offering, sale, and 
delivery of the Certificates to the public.  The City Secretary is hereby authorized and 
directed to include and maintain a copy of the Official Statement and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this 
meeting. 
 
 Section 7.04.  Control and Delivery of Certificates. 
 
 (a) The Mayor is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Certificate 
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, 
examination and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by 
the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State and registration with, and initial 
exchange or transfer by, the Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 
 (b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the 
Certificates shall be made to the Underwriters under and subject to the general 
supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the City of all amounts due to 
the City under the terms of sale. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

INVESTMENTS 
 

 Section 8.01.  Investments. 
 
 (a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund, at the option of the City, may be 
invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law. 
 
 (b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be 
kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds 
of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from 
the fund from which the investment was made. 
 
 Section 8.02.  Investment Income. 
 
 Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund 
shall be credited to such Fund. 
 
 

00807088;1 Page 31 



ARTICLE IX 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 
 
 Section 9.01.  Payment of the Certificates. 
 
 On or before each Interest Payment Date of the Certificates and while any of the 
Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available by the 
Authorized Officials to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the Interest and Sinking Fund, 
money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of the Certificates as will accrue 
or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date. 
 
 Section 9.02.  Federal Tax Covenants. 
 
 The City covenants to take any action necessary to secure, or refrain from any 
action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Certificates as obligations 
described in section 103 of the Code, the interest on which is not includable in the 
"gross income" of the holder for purposes of federal income taxation.  In furtherance 
thereof, the City covenants as follows: 
  

(1) to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds 
of the Certificates or the projects financed therewith (less amounts 
deposited to a reserve fund, if any) are used for any "private business 
use," as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more than 10 
percent of the proceeds of the projects financed therewith are so used, 
such amounts, whether or not received by the City, with respect to such 
private business use, do not, under the terms of this Ordinance or any 
underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the 
payment of more than 10 percent of the debt service on the Certificates, in 
contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code; 

 
(2) to take any action to assure that in the event the "private business use" 

described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds 5 percent of the proceeds of 
the Certificates or the projects licensed therewith (less amounts deposited 
into a reserve fund, if any) then the amount in excess of 5 percent is used 
for a "private business use" which is "related" and not "disproportionate," 
within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the governmental 
use; 

 
(3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the 

lesser of $5,000,000, or 5 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates (less 
amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used 
to finance loans to persons, other than state or local governmental units, 
in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code; 

 

00807088;1 Page 32 



(4) to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the 
Certificates being treated as "private activity bonds" within the meaning of 
section 141(b) of the Code; 

 
(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Certificates being 

"federally guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code; 
 

(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Certificates, 
directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, 
directly or indirectly, to acquire investment property (as defined in section 
148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a materially higher yield over the 
term of the Certificates, other than investment property acquired with– 

 
(i) proceeds of the Certificates invested for a reasonable temporary 

period of 3 years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a 
period of 30 days or less until such proceeds are needed for the 
purpose for which the Certificates are issued, 

 
(ii) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the 

meaning of section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and 
 

(iii) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or 
replacement fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 
percent of the proceeds of the Certificates; 

 
(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Certificates or amounts 

treated as proceeds of the Certificates, as may be necessary, so that the 
Certificates do not otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 
of the Code (relating to arbitrage) and, to the extent applicable, section 
149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings); 

 
(8) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year 

period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Certificates) an amount 
that is at least equal to 90 percent of the "Excess Earnings," within the 
meaning of section 148(f) of the Code, and to pay to the United States of 
America, not later than 60 days after the Certificates have been paid in 
full, 100 percent of the amount then required to be paid as a result of 
Excess Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code;  

 
(9) to maintain such records as will enable the City to fulfill its responsibilities 

under this section and section 148 of the Code and to retain such records 
for at least six years following the final payment of principal and interest on 
the Certificates; and 

 

00807088;1 Page 33 



(10) to timely file the information required by section 149(e) of the Code with 
the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such other form and in 
such place as the Secretary may prescribe.  

 
 In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenants (8) and (9), a "Rebate 
Fund" is hereby authorized to be established by the City for the sole benefit of the 
United States of America, and such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other 
person, including without limitation the Certificateholders. The Rebate Fund is 
authorized to be established for the additional purpose of compliance with section 148 
of the Code. 
 
 It is the understanding of the City that the covenants contained herein are 
intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings 
promulgated by the U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto.  In the event that 
regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of 
the Code as applicable to the Certificates, the City will not be required to comply with 
any covenant contained herein to the extent that such failure to comply, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption from federal 
income taxation of interest on the Certificates under section 103 of the Code.  In the 
event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional 
requirements which are applicable to the Certificates, the City agrees to comply with the 
additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally recognized 
bond counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the 
Certificates under section 103 of the Code.  In furtherance of such intention, the City 
hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor, the City Secretary and the chief financial 
officer of the City to execute any documents, certificates or reports required by the Code 
and to make such elections on behalf of the City which may be permitted by the Code 
as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the Certificates. 
 
 Section 9.03.  Reserved.   
 
 Section 9.04.  Other Representations and Covenants. 
 
 (a) The City will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, 
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each 
Certificate; the City will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on 
each Certificate on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such 
Certificate; and the City will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this 
Ordinance, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts of money specified by this 
Ordinance. 
 
 (b) The City is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue 
the Certificates; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has 
been duly and effectively taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof 
are and will be valid and enforceable obligations of the City in accordance with their 
terms. 

00807088;1 Page 34 



 
ARTICLE X 

 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 
 Section 10.01.  Events of Default.   
 
 Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is 
hereby declared to be an "Event of Default," to wit: 
 

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if 
any, or interest on any of the Certificates when the same becomes due 
and payable;  

 
(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, 

agreement or obligation of the City, the failure to perform which materially, 
adversely affects the rights of the Owners, including but not limited to, 
their prospect or ability to be repaid in accordance with this Ordinance, 
and the continuation thereof for a period of 30 days after notice of such 
default is given by any Owner to the City; or 

 
 (iii) the City declares bankruptcy. 
 
 Section 10.02.  Remedies for Default. 
 
 (a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and in every case any 
Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including but not limited to, a trustee or 
trustees therefor, may proceed against the City for the purpose of protecting and 
enforcing the rights of the Owners under this Ordinance, by mandamus or other suit, 
action or special proceeding in equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, 
for any relief permitted by law, including the specific performance of any covenant or 
agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that may be unlawful 
or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of such 
remedies. 
 
 (b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained 
for the equal benefit of all Owners of Certificates then outstanding. 
 
 Section 10.03.  Remedies Not Exclusive. 
 
 (a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any 
other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be 
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the 
Certificates or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right to accelerate the debt 
evidenced by the Certificates shall not be available as a remedy under this Ordinance. 

00807088;1 Page 35 



 
 (b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be 
deemed a waiver of any other available remedy. 
 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 

DISCHARGE 
 
 Section 11.01.  Discharge by Payment. 
 
 When all Certificates have been paid in full as to principal and as to interest and 
redemption premium, if any, or when all Certificates have become due and payable, 
whether at maturity or by prior redemption or otherwise, and the City shall have 
provided for the payment of the whole amount due or to become due on all Certificates 
then outstanding, including all interest that has accrued thereon or that may accrue to 
the date of maturity or prior redemption, and any premium due or that may become due 
at maturity or prior redemption, by depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar, for 
payment to the principal of such outstanding Certificates and the interest accrued 
thereon and any redemption premium due thereon, the entire amount due or to become 
due thereon, and the City shall also have paid or caused to be paid all sums payable 
under this Ordinance by the City, including the compensation due or to become due the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, then the Paying Agent/Registrar, upon receipt of a letter of 
instructions from the City requesting the same, shall discharge and release the lien of 
this Ordinance and execute and deliver to the City such releases or other instruments 
as shall be requisite to release the lien hereof. 
 
 Section 11.02.  Discharge by Deposit. 
 
 (a) The City may discharge its obligation to pay the principal of, redemption 
premium, if any, and interest on all or any portion of the Certificates and its obligation to 
pay other sums payable or to become payable under this Ordinance by the City, 
including the compensation due or to become due the Paying Agent/Registrar, in any 
manner permitted by applicable law, including in accordance with the following 
provisions: 
 

(i) depositing or causing to be deposited with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar an amount of money that, together with the interest 
earned on or capital gains or profits to be realized from the 
investment of such money, will be sufficient to pay the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on such 
Certificates to maturity or to the date fixed for prior redemption of 
such Certificates, and to pay such other amounts as may be 
reasonably estimated by the Paying Agent/Registrar to become 
payable under this Ordinance with respect to the Certificates being 

00807088;1 Page 36 



provided for, including the compensation due or to become due the 
Paying Agent/Registrar; and 

 
(ii) providing the Paying Agent/Registrar with an opinion of nationally 

recognized bond counsel acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
to the effect that the deposit specified in subdivision (i) of this 
subsection (a) will not cause the interest on any of the Certificates 
to become subject to federal income taxation. 

 
 (b) Subject to subsection (c) of this Section, upon compliance with subsection 
(a) of this Section, the Certificates for the payment of which provision is thus made shall 
no longer be regarded as outstanding and unpaid, and the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
upon receipt of a letter of instructions from the City requesting the same, shall discharge 
and release the lien of this Ordinance as to such Certificates and shall execute and 
deliver to the City such releases or other instruments as shall be requisite to release the 
lien hereof. 
 
 (c) Before discharge and release of any portion of the lien of this Ordinance 
pursuant to this Section in accordance with subsection (a), the City shall make the 
following provisions with the Paying Agent/Registrar (or other eligible commercial bank 
or trust company): 
 

(i) the establishment of a separate escrow account fund with the 
Paying Agent/Registrar (or other eligible commercial bank or trust 
company) for the deposit pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this 
Section; 

 
(ii) the payment to the Owners at the date of maturity or at the date 

fixed for prior redemption, as applicable, of the full amount to which 
the Owners of the appropriate Certificates would be entitled by way 
of principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest to the date of 
such maturity or prior redemption; 

 
(iii) the investment of such moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar in 

securities or obligations maturing in sufficient time, in the judgment 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar, to make available the moneys 
required for such purposes; 

 
(iv) the sending of written notice by registered or certified United States 

mail to the Owner of each appropriate Certificate then outstanding 
within thirty (30) days following the date of such deposit that such 
moneys are so available for such payment; and 

 
(v) the payment to the City, periodically or following final payment of 

the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the 
appropriate Certificates, of any moneys, interest earnings, profits or 

00807088;1 Page 37 



capital gains over and above the amounts necessary for such 
purposes. 

 
 (d) Notwithstanding anything in this Ordinance to the contrary, any money 
deposited in the escrow account for the discharge and release of the lien of this 
Ordinance shall be invested in (i) direct noncallable obligations of the United States of 
America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States 
of America; (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the 
agency or instrumentality; or (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a 
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded. 
 
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
 
 Section 12.01.  Definitions.   
 
 As used in this Article XII, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to 
such terms below: 
 
  “EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System 

established by the MSRB. 
 
  "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
  "Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time or 

officially interpreted by the SEC. 
 
  "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
 Section 12.02.  Annual Reports.   
 
 The City shall provide annually to the MSRB through EMMA, within six months 
after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2014, financial information and 
operating data with respect to the City that is of the general type included in the Official 
Statement authorized by Section 7.03, being the information described in Tables 1 
through 6 and 8 through 14 of the Official Statement and Appendix B thereto.  Any 
financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles the City may be required to employ from time to time in 
accordance with State law, and (2) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such 
statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be 
provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such period, 
then the City shall provide (1) unaudited financial statements for such fiscal year within 
such six month period, and (2) audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year 

00807088;1 Page 38 



to the MSRB through EMMA when and if the audit report on such statements becomes 
available. 
 
 If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB through EMMA of the 
change (and of the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the 
City otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data 
pursuant to this Section. 
 
 The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this 
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific 
reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if 
it is available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB through 
EMMA or filed with the SEC). 
 
 Section 12.03.  Event Notices.   
 
 The City shall notify the MSRB through EMMA, in a timely manner not in excess 
of ten business days after the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to 
the Certificates: 
 
  1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
  2. Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
 
  3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
 
  4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
 
  5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 

perform; 
 
  6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service 

of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of 
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Certificates or 
other material events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 
Certificates; 

 
  7. Modifications to rights of holders of the Certificates, if material; 
 
  8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
 
  9. Defeasances; 
 

00807088;1 Page 39 



  10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Certificates, if material;  

 
  11. Rating changes; 
 
  12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event;  
 
  13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition 

involving an obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of 
the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary course 
of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such 
an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any 
such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

 
  14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of 

name of a trustee, if material 
 
 The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 12.02 by the 
time required by this Section. 
 
 Section 12.04.  Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.   
 
 The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in 
this Article with respect to the City and the Certificates while, but only while, the City 
remains an "obligated person" with respect to the Certificates within the meaning of the 
Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice required by Section 12.03 of any 
bond calls and defeasance that cause the City to no longer be such an "obligated 
person." 
 
 The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Holders and Beneficial 
Owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any 
benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  
The City undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial 
statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article 
and does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or 
material to a complete presentation of the financial results, condition, or prospects of the 
City or the State of Texas or hereby undertake to update any information provided in 
accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City 
does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its 
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date. 
 
 UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE 
HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER 
PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN 
PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT 

00807088;1 Page 40 



FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT 
EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, 
FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN 
ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 
 
 No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Article 
shall comprise a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other 
provision of this Ordinance. 
 
 Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit 
the duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 
 
 The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances resulting from a change in legal requirements, a 
change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the 
City, but only if (1) the provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted 
an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates 
in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of 
the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and 
(2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater 
amount required by any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or (b) a 
Person that is unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) 
determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Holders 
and Beneficial Owners of the Certificates.  If the City so amends the provisions of this 
Article, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating data next 
provided in accordance with Section 12.02 an explanation, in narrative form, of the 
reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial 
information or operating data so provided. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

 Section 13.01.  Further Procedures.   
 
 The Mayor  and City Secretary, and all other officers, employees, and agents of 
the City, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, 
empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such 
acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver in the name and under the 
seal and on behalf of the City all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as 
may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this 
Ordinance, the Certificates, the sale and delivery of the Certificates, and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement. In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Certificates, the 
Mayor and City Manager, Chief Financial Officer and Bond Counsel are hereby 

00807088;1 Page 41 



authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or corrections to this 
Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this Ordinance 
necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more 
completely document the transactions contemplated and approved by this Ordinance, 
(ii) obtain a rating from any of the national bond rating agencies or satisfy any 
requirements of the provider of a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, or (iii) obtain 
the approval of the Certificates by the Attorney General's office. In case any officer 
whose signature shall appear on any Certificate shall cease to be such officer before 
the delivery of such Certificate, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient 
for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. 
 
 Section 13.02.  Ordinance a Contract; Amendments.   
 
 The Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, from time to time, of 
the Certificates, binding on the City and its successors and assigns, and shall not be 
amended or repealed by the City as long as any Certificate remains outstanding except 
as permitted in this Section.  The City may amend the Ordinance without the consent of 
or notice to any Owners in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the Owners, 
including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission 
therein.  In addition, the City may, with the written consent of the holders of a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Certificates then outstanding affected thereby, 
amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of the Ordinance; except that, without 
the consent of the Owners of all the Certificates affected, no such amendment, addition, 
or rescission may (1) make any change in the maturity of any of the outstanding 
Certificates; (2) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the outstanding Certificates; 
(3) reduce the amount of the principal or maturity value of, or redemption premium, if 
any, payable on any outstanding Certificates; (4) modify the terms of payment or of 
interest or redemption premium on outstanding Certificates or any of them or impose 
any condition with respect to such payment; or (5) change the minimum percentage 
amount of the Certificates necessary to be held by Registered Owners for consent to 
such amendment.  
 
 Section 13.03.  Reserved.   
 
 Section 13.04.  Public Meeting.   
 
 It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance has been read, passed and finally adopted was open to the public and public 
notice of the time, place and subject matter of the public business to be considered and 
acted upon at said meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all as required by the 
applicable provisions of the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
 

00807088;1 Page 42 



 Section 13.05  Governing Law.   
 
 This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
 Section 13.06.  Effective Date.   
 
 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage on the 
date shown below. 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
 

00807088;1 Page 43 



 PASSED AND APPROVED this 15th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
     
    Mayor 
    City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
     
City Secretary 
City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
 
 
[CITY SEAL] 
 

00807088;1  
[SIGNATURE PAGE] 



AGENDA ITEM # 16 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-032: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land, for 2.53 acres more or less, 
located at 190 Bagdad Road, WCAD Parcel R522925. Currently, 
the property is zoned SFU-2-B (Single Family Urban) the 
applicant is proposing to zone the property to HC-4-D (Heavy 
Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Mike Elmore on behalf of MPE Realty. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the staff recommendation 
of denial of the requested HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) district 
and approval of the HC-3-C (Heavy Commercial) district with the 
modification of the subject property boundaries to only include the 
area to the north of the floodplain as shown in Attachment 6 at the 
January 08, 2015 meeting 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.   Staff Recommendation Exhibit 
 7.  Ordinance 
 8.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission January 08, 2015 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 01/09/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-032 
190 S BAGDAD ROAD 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: MPE Realty 
 
Current Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
 
Proposed Zoning: HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 190 S Bagdad Road and includes approximately 

2.53 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH HC-4-D 
SFU-2-B 

Developed Office Warehouse Uses 
Cemetery 

EAST SFU-2-B Detention Pond associated with the Westview Meadows 
Subdivision 

SOUTH LC-2-B Undeveloped Property Zoned for Local Commercial Uses 

WEST HC-4-D 
GC-3-C 

Undeveloped Property & Developed Office Warehouse Uses 
Undeveloped Property Zoned for General Commercial Uses 

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

HC – HEAVY COMMERCIAL:   
Features:  Any use in GC plus commercial laundry, contractor storage yard, lumber yards, 

indoor manufacture, assembly and processing, mini-warehouse, RV, trailer and boat storage, 
testing and research, warehouse and distribution, wholesale, wrecker impoundment. 

Intent:  Development of a variety of light manufacturing, assembly and processing businesses, 
storage, warehouses and lumber sales.  Access should be provided by an industrial or 
commercial collector street. 

 
TYPE 4 (non-residential only):   

Features:  Accessory buildings up to 60% of primary building; drive-thru service; outdoor 
fueling and washing of vehicles; overhead service doors; maximum outdoor display; 
substantial outdoor storage; outdoor entertainment venues and animal boarding. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 4 site component is intended to be utilized in combination with GC, LI or HI 

components where appropriate for moderately intense outdoor site requirements and a need to 
utilize the outdoor site area for significant outdoor display, storage and accessory buildings and 
similar permitted uses. 

(2) This site component is intended only for industrial or heavy commercial uses and may be utilized 
only with GC, LI or HI use components.   

(3) This site component is not intended for retail or office development not requiring the available 
limits of outdoor storage and accessory buildings or adjacent to residential neighborhoods where 
not adequately buffered from residential uses. 

 
TYPE D (non-residential only):   

Features:  35% masonry (60% street facing); metal siding for remainder not facing a street; 2 or 
more architectural features. 

Intent:   
(1) This architectural component is intended only for industrial warehouse, heavy commercial service 

and other similar applications and shall be utilized only with GC, HC or HI use components.  
(2) This component is not intended to be utilized with the majority of GC districts.   
(3) This component is not intended for retail or office development or adjacent to residential 

neighborhoods where not adequately buffered from residential uses.   
(4) This site component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized 

within industrial park development.   
 

  
  

 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Find suitable districts for industrial development so that the City may recruit additional 

employers and avoid locating industrial development near neighborhoods without 
adequate buffering. 

 Residential neighborhoods are the predominate land use within the City and it's ETJ.  
Neighborhoods are primarily composed of single-family detached housing and include 
other compatible uses including parks, schools, and places of worship.  Neighborhoods 
may be low to moderate density depending upon the topography and the feasibility of 
providing organized sewer service.  Areas with steep topography, flood plain or other 
natural features that are intended to be preserved and served by on-site sewage systems 
will be the lowest density while areas that are relatively flat and where organized sewer 
systems are feasible will be of medium density.  Residential neighborhoods provide 
connections to each other and to neighborhood, community and town center nodes.  A 
variety of lot and house sizes are encouraged within residential neighborhoods. 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) in order to 
continue the development of an office warehouse complex at this location.  There is an 
established single-family neighborhood located to the east with commercial zoning located along 
Bagdad Road.  The applicant has submitted site development plans for this property.  The 
western portion of the property is zoned appropriately for office warehouse uses, but the 
remainder is zoned for single-family. 
 
The proposed HC use component would permit the development of general commercial uses as 
well as a variety of light manufacturing, assembly and processing businesses, storage, 
warehouses and lumber sales uses.  Access to properties zoned with this use component should 
be provided by a collector street or higher classification. 
 
The Type 4 site component would permit accessory buildings, drive-thru service lanes, outdoor 
fueling and washing of vehicles, overhead service doors, unlimited outdoor display, substantial 
outdoor storage, outdoor entertainment venues, and animal boarding.  This site component is not 
intended for retail or office development not requiring the available limits of outdoor storage and 
accessory buildings or adjacent to residential neighborhoods where not adequately buffered from 
residential uses. 
 
The Type D architectural component requires that the buildings consist of thirty-five (35%) 
percent masonry and sixty (60%) percent masonry for street facing walls.  Metal siding is 
permitted for the remaining walls not facing a street.  This site component is not intended for 
retail or office development or adjacent to residential neighborhoods where not adequately 
buffered from residential uses and is discouraged along major thoroughfares.   
 

 



Attachment # 1                 

This property is located within an area designated for residential neighborhoods on the Future 
Land Use Map.  Residential neighborhoods are the predominate land use within the City and it's 
ETJ.  Neighborhoods are primarily composed of single-family detached housing and include 
other compatible uses including parks, schools, and places of worship.  Neighborhoods may be 
low to moderate density depending upon the topography and the feasibility of providing 
organized sewer service.  Residential neighborhoods provide connections to each other and to 
neighborhood, community and town center nodes.  A variety of lot and house sizes are 
encouraged within residential neighborhoods. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan includes areas designated for Industrial.  This zoning district would be 
required to be located within the Industrial District.  The Industrial District land use category is 
intended to be located in close proximity to major transportation systems including highways, 
tollways, railroads, etc.  These areas are intended for industrial and employment land uses that 
may generate traffic and noise and that may require outdoor areas for storage or 
manufacturing/assembly.  These are important for the City's economic development and should 
be developed in a way to minimize negative impacts on surrounding uses.  Industrial land uses 
should be concentrated in the areas shown on the Future Land Use map in order to create 
synergy among similar land uses  and to encourage coordinated design and the potential for 
shared infrastructure such as parking, drainage facilities and utilities.  Industrial uses should be 
developed with attention to aesthetics through the provision of landscaping along street 
frontages, screening of outdoor storage and assembly areas, and high quality building design and 
materials where buildings are visible from roadways or adjacent residential development areas. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested HC-4-D district.  This  property is not located within 
an industrial district identified on the Future Land Use Map.  The Comprehensive Plan does not 
support this zoning district within the residential neighborhood area.  In addition, the requested 
site and architectural components are not in compliance with the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.  The intent statements discourage the Type 4 and Type D 
components when adjacent to residential uses.  Staff recommends that the subject property 
boundaries are modified to include the area to the north of the floodplain as shown in Attachment 
6.  In addition, staff recommends approval of HC-3-C due to the adjacency to the established 
residential districts.  The Type 3 site component includes limited outdoor storage and display and 
the Type C architectural component includes higher architectural standards than the proposed 
Type D. 

 



4D

5D

5D

5C

3A

2A

OLD 2243 WEST

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

W SOUTH ST

KATHERINE W
AY

S BAGDAD RD

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

AMARONE DR

PINOT NOIR ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-032

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
190 S Bagdad Road

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node



4D

5D

5D

5C

3A

2A

OLD 2243 WEST

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

W SOUTH ST

KATHERINE W
AY

S BAGDAD RD

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

AMARONE DR

PINOT NOIR ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-032

Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
190 S Bagdad Road

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

Proposed
HC-4-D



LEE DR

OLD 2243 WEST

N BAGDAD RD
W SOUTH

 ST KATHERINE WAY

TE
RR

AC
E D

R

S BAGDAD RD

MARSALA CIR

MARSALA CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-032 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
190 S Bagdad Road



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5



4D

5D

5D

5C

3A

2A

OLD 2243 WEST

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

W SOUTH ST

KATHERINE W
AY

S BAGDAD RD

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

AMARONE DR

PINOT NOIR ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-032

Attachment #6
Proposed Zoning Map
190 S Bagdad Road

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Staff Recommendation
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

Proposed
HC-3-C



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PORTION OF A TRACT OF 
LAND FROM SFU-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN) TO HC-4-D (HEAVY 
COMMERCIAL); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following portion of a parcel of land, which 
is herein referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 2.53 acres, 
more or less, located at 190 Bagdad Road in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally described as 2.53 acres out of Lot 5a, Bagdad Meados 
Unit 2 Replat; identified by tax identification number R522925. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) to HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) as 
shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 15th day of January, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 29th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



4D

5D

5D

5C

3A

2A

OLD 2243 WEST

LEE DR

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

W SOUTH ST

KATHERINE W
AY

S BAGDAD RD

TERRACE DR

MARSALA CIR

AMARONE DR

PINOT NOIR ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-032

Exhibit A
Proposed Zoning Map
190 S Bagdad Road

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

Proposed
HC-4-D

455'

325'

344'





AGENDA ITEM # 17 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-033: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land, for 5.06 acres more or less, 
located at 602 and 604 Horseshoe, WCAD Parcel R036456. 
Currently, the property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single Family 
Urban/Manufactured Homes) the applicant is proposing to zone the 
property to TF-2-B (Two-Family), Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: David W. Coombs, P.E. on behalf of Akram Amani. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended staff recommendation of approval of 
the requested TF-2-B (Two-Family) district at the January 08, 
2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
 7.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission January 08, 2015 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 01/09/2015 



Attachment # 1           

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-033 
602 and 604 Horseshoe Dr 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Akram Amani 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family/Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is at 602 & 604 Horseshoe Dr and is approximately 5.06 

acres in size.   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFU/MH-2-B 
MF-3-A 

Developed Single Family Home 
Vacant Property 

EAST SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

SOUTH SFU-2-B Vacant Property (Proposed Magnolia Creek Subdivision) 

WEST SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      

 



Attachment # 1           

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
SFU/MH – SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN, MANUFACTURED HOME:   

Features: 7,200 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. living area min. for site built; 720 sq. ft. min. for 
manufactured home. 

Intent:  Development of single-family homes and manufactured homes on moderate sized lots 
and for other uses that are compatible and complimentary to such uses on moderate sized lots.  
Such components are also intended to create more variety in housing opportunities. 

 
TF – TWO-FAMILY:   

Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
 

SITE COMPONENT: 
TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 

 



Attachment # 1           

Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family/Manufactured Home) district, and 
the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district for a proposed 
duplex project.  It is generally located approximately 1,100 ft. west from the southwest corner of 
the intersection of S. West Dr. and Horseshoe Dr.  The adjacent properties to the east and west 
are existing manufactured homes, and the property to the north of this site is a developed single 
family home.  South of this property is a vacant SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) zoned property. 
The Commission recently reviewed and recommended approval of PUD for a four and six-plex 
project at the intersection of Horseshoe Dr. and Powell Dr. in September. 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area as residential, and it is not located within a Town 
Center, Community, or Neighborhood Node. The intent statement for the TF district specifically 
references that the district is meant to provide an orderly transition and serve as a buffer between 
larger lot neighborhoods and other more intensive land uses. Additionally the intent statements 
note that property with this zoning designation should be located along streets with at least 56 ft. 
of R.O.W. and 36 ft. of street pavement. Furthermore, the intent statements note that property 
with the TF designation should be located within 600 ft. of parkland or other recreational open 
space. 

 



Attachment # 1           

For the applicant to meet the intent statements of the ordinance, they would need to provide the 
adequate R.O.W. and paving standards of the TF intent statement at the time of subdividing the 
property as Horseshoe Dr. has approximately 60 ft. of R.O.W. and 25 ft. of street pavement.  
Additionally, the applicant would need to include a park or open space lot at the time of platting 
to satisfy the intent statement speaking to a TF district being located within 600 ft of park or 
recreational open space. 
 
The Type 2 site component and Type B architectural component would be appropriate for the 
applicant’s zoning request as the property's location adheres to the intent statements of the site 
and architectural components summarized under the above intent statement section. 
Additionally, the majority of the properties in this area are under the Type 2 site and Type B 
architectural components of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets the main intent statements for the Two-Family district.  It would 
provide a buffer between single family districts to the south and buffer more intensive 
developments immediately to the north.  The property is approximately five acres, and avoids 
forming a ten acre contiguous tract of Two-Family zoning.  However, the property is located on 
a residential class street, and fails to meet the intent statement for locating Two-Family districts 
on roads with a minimum street pavement section of 36 ft, and being located within 600 ft. of 
park or recreational open space.  The applicant would have to address these provisions of the 
intent statement by providing it at the time of platting. Staff recommends approval of this 
request, as the proposed request does satisfy the majority of the intent statements outlined in the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.   
 

 



MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

LION ACRES
LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

MASON
CREEK
PARK

^ ^

^

3A3A

HORSESHOE DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

MASON ST

MOON GLOW
 DR

SO
NNY D

R

TOPAZ LN

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-033
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
602 and 604 Horseshoe Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits



MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

LION ACRES
LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

MASON
CREEK
PARK

^ ^

^

3A3A

LION DR

HORSESHOE DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

MASON ST

SO
NNY D

R
MOON GLOW

 DR

TOPAZ LN

TA
BL

ER
OC

K 
CI

R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-033
Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
602-604 Horseshoe Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Proposed TF-2-B



LION DR

HORSESHOE DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

SO
NNY D

R

MASON ST TA
BL

ER
OC

K 
CI

R 183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-033 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
602-604 Horseshoe Dr



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU/MH-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME) TO 
TF-2-B (TWO-FAMILY); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 5.06 acres, more or less, 
located at 602 and 604 Horseshoe Drive in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally described as Lots 18 & 19, Block A of the Leander 
Heights Subdivision; identified by tax identification number R036456. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) to TF-2-
B (Two-Family) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 15th day of January, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 29th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

LION ACRES
LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

MASON
CREEK
PARK

^ ^

^

3A3A

LION DR

HORSESHOE DR

PO
W

EL
L D

R

MASON ST

SO
NNY D

R
MOON GLOW

 DR

TOPAZ LN

TA
BL

ER
OC

K 
CI

R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-033

Exhibit A
Proposed Zoning Map
602-604 Horseshoe Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Proposed 
TF-2-B





AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Presentation and discussion regarding the creation of a municipal 

utility district for the proposed Springwoods subdivision. 
 
Background: The owner of the Springwoods tract has requested an opportunity 

to present their development concept and discuss the potential 
creation of a municipal utility district to assist with the financing of 
utility infrastructure improvements necessary to serve the property. 

 
Origination: Applicant: Terry Guerin 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: None 
 
Attachments: 1. Location map   
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  1/7/2015 
 



SARITA VALLEY,PH 1

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

COLD SPRINGS, SEC 1

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

BORHO

CATALINA RANCH

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 3

PECAN CREEK

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 4

SARITA VALLEY,PH 2A

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5

PALMERA RIDGE

MARBELLA

RIDGMAR LANDING

PARKERTRACT

^

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2A

2B

2A

2B

2A

2B

2B

3B

2B

3C

3B

3B

2B

4C 3C

2A

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A
2A

3D

2A

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B2B

2A2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A
2A
2A

2B

2B

2B

2A

RM 2243

CR 175

CR 177

DRVW

CR 176

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

WHISPER LN

CR 264

RI
DG

MA
R 

RD

HERO WAY

VP
 R

AN
CH

 D
R

PARKSIDE PKWY

FAIR OAKS ST

WARFIELD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

MARCOS DR

BR
OM

E D
R

SEMINOLE CANYON DR

ESCALERA PKWY

AIRPORT DR MARSHALL CT

ARROWFEATHER PASS

CH
AD

WI
CK

 D
R

E WINDEMERE

CREEK MEADOW CV

BRANCH HOLW

FE
AT

HE
R R

EE
D D

R

WESTFIELD DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 1,000
Feet

14-CP-005 Springwood
Site Location Map
Proposed Springwood Project

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Leander ETJ

Community Center
Node

Town Center
Node

Community Center
Node

Community Center
Node

Neighborhood
Center
Node



AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Discussion and possible action regarding the City's participation in 

the Texas City Lab project. 
 
Background: The University of Texas at Austin's Center for Sustainable 

Development created a new program called Texas City Lab.  The 
goal of the program is to create partnerships between students and 
faculty at the university and Texas cities in order to provide 
research and consulting assistance to the cities and to provide 
hands-on learning experiences for the students. 

 
 Representatives from the program approached the City last year 

about participating in the program.  Participation is proposed to 
span the course of the 2015-2016 academic year. 

 
 The City would identify one or more projects that it would like 

assistance with and the City Lab staff and faculty would design 
their courses and research around the project and would complete 
final deliverables based upon the scope of the selected project. 

 
 This agenda item provides an opportunity for representatives from 

the City Lab program to present information about the program 
and answer any questions. 

 
 If the Council is in favor of participating in the program, staff 

would negotiate a scope of work and an interlocal agreement with 
the university. 

 
Origination: City of Leander and University of Texas 
 
Financial  
Consideration: To be determined based upon the scope of the project. 
 



Recommendation: Staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to negotiate an 
interlocal agreement with the University of Texas for the City's 
participation in the Texas City Lab program. 

 
Attachments: 1. Texas City Lab program overview   
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  1/7/2015 
 



 

 

 

 

 
Program Overview 
Texas CityLab is an interdisciplinary applied learning strategy for university faculty and 
students to engage with Texas communities to address economic, social equity and 
environmental challenges facing Central Texas.  

Part of the Center for Sustainable Development at the University of Texas at Austin, 
Texas CityLab brings diverse students and faculty together for applied research and 
sustainability work. Through this service-learning program, students will have unique 
access to experiential learning opportunities across several disciplines. In tandem, the 
program will also help Central Texas cities address their critical sustainability issues by 
bringing together the unique resources available at the University of Texas. 

Each year, Texas CityLab contracts with one Texas city; together, Texas CityLab and 
city staff and officials jointly identify sustainability projects for existing UT classes to 
address. Then, over the course of two semesters, classes in multiple disciplines will 
research and explore these projects, culminating in a final report encompassing the 
interdisciplinary findings.  

2014- 2015 Academic Year 
In its inaugural year, the Texas CityLab is partnering with University of Texas Campus 
Planning & Facilities Management. As the “city” in our backyard, the 80,000-person 
University of Texas campus offers an ideal platform for Texas CityLab. During the 2014-
2015 academic year, fifteen classes will explore solutions to a range of sustainability 
challenges on campus. Working with the Facilities and Operations team at the University 
of Texas and in alignment with the UT Campus Master Plan goals, the year’s courses 
focus on five project areas: energy and water conservation, the value proposition of 
sustainability, Waller Creek, wildlife and biodiversity and zero waste.  

Project Contacts 
Faculty PI: Dr. Katherine Lieberknecht (klieberknecht@utexas.edu)  
Manager: Sarah Wu (sarahwu@austin.utexas.edu) 
Coordinator: Kaethe Selkirk (kaethe.selkirk@gmail.com)  

To stay informed of Texas CityLab, be sure to follow the Center for Sustainable 
Development on Facebook and on Twitter (@UTSoA_CSD, #TXCityLab). 



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Interlocal 

Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation/ 
Department of Motor Vehicles Relating to Motor Vehicle 
Registration Refusal, “Scofflaw Services Contract.”  

 
Background: State law allows municipalities to enter into contracts with TxDot 

in which TxDot agrees to restrict, under certain circumstances, the 
issuance of vehicle registration licenses and/or renewals to persons 
who have an outstanding warrant (for moving traffic violations) 
issued by the municipality.  Under the terms of the contract, the 
City would transmit to TxDot outstanding warrant information and 
then TxDot would relay that information to counties throughout 
the state so that a “flag” would appear next to the person’s 
registration record.  Once that person attempted to renew their 
license at their respective county tax office, each county would 
have the option to deny the attempted registration until the warrant 
flag has been lifted by the municipality or they have the option of 
bypassing the flag, allowing the registration and informing the 
individual that they have an outstanding warrant from the City.  
Our existing collection agency, MVBA, will handle the data 
transmission interface between the City and TxDot on our behalf. 

 
Origination: Municipal Court 
 
Financial  
Consideration: $500 deposit to establish the account.  Municipal Court budget. 
 
Recommendation: Authorize City Manager to execute the Interlocal Agreement with 

TxDot relating to motor vehicle registration refusal. 
 
Attachments: Resolution & Interlocal Agreement 
  
Prepared By:   Robert G. Powers 
 Finance Director 



Resolution No. ______________ 
 
A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Interlocal Agreement By and Between the City 
of Leander, Texas and the Texas Department of Transportation/Department of Motor Vehicles Relating 
to Vehicle Registration Refusal Pursuant to Section 702.003 of the Texas Transportation Code. 
 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved By the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas That: 
 
Section 1: 
 
The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an interlocal governmental agreement, in a form 
substantially similar to Exhibit A, attached hereto, between the City of Leander, Texas and the Texas 
Department of Transportation/Department of Motor Vehicles, more specifically described as the 
“Scofflaw Services Contract for Marking Texas Motor Vehicle Registration Records,” relating to the 
collection of outstanding monies owed the City of Leander, Texas for unpaid moving traffic violations. 
 
Section 2: 
 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon and after its adoption and approval. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the ____ day of __________________, 2015. 
 
City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



Resolution No. ______________ 

 

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Interlocal Agreement By and Between the City 

of Leander, Texas and the Texas Department of Transportation/Department of Motor Vehicles Relating 

to Vehicle Registration Refusal Pursuant to Section 702.003 of the Texas Transportation Code. 

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved By the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas That: 

 

Section 1: 

 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an interlocal governmental agreement, in a form 

substantially similar to Exhibit A, attached hereto, between the City of Leander, Texas and the Texas 

Department of Transportation/Department of Motor Vehicles, more specifically described as the 

“Scofflaw Services Contract for Marking Texas Motor Vehicle Registration Records,” relating to the 

collection of outstanding monies owed the City of Leander, Texas for unpaid moving traffic violations. 

 

Section 2: 

 

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon and after its adoption and approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the ____ day of __________________, 2015. 

 

City of Leander, Texas 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into by the Contracting Parties under Government Code, Chapter 791. 

I. CONTRACTING PARTIES: 

The Texas Department of Motor Vehicles (TxDMV) 

The City of Leander, Texas (Local Government) 

II. PURPOSE: Scofflaw Services contract for marking Texas Motor Vehicle Registration Records. 

III. STATEMENT OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED: TxDMV will undertake and carry out services 
described in Attachment A, Scope of Services. 

IV. CONTRACT PAYMENT: Contract payment shall conform to the provisions of Attachment B, Budget. 

V. TERM OF CONTRACT: This contract begins when fully executed by both parties and terminates five years 
from the date this contract is executed by the state, or when otherwise terminated as provided in Attachment 
C, Article 5 of this Agreement. 

VI. LEGAL AUTHORITY: 
THE PARTIES certify that the services provided under this contract are services that are properly within the 
legal authority of the Contracting Parties. 

TxDMV further certifies that it has the authority to perform the services by authority granted in Section 
702.003 and in Section 707.017 of the Texas Transportation Code. 

The governing body, by resolution or ordinance, dated , has authorized the Local 
Government to obtain the services described in Attachment A. 

This contract incorporates the provisions of Attachment A, Scope of Services, Attachment B, Budget, 
Attachment C, General Terms and Conditions, Attachment D, Resolution or Ordinance, Attachment E, 
Contact Information, and Attachment F, Account information. 

FOR THE CITY OF LEANDER, T E X A S (Name of Local Government) 

By: Date: 
(Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title: Kent Cagle, City Manager 

FOR THE S T A T E OF T E X A S 
Executed for the Executive Director and approved by the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles Board for the 
purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or work programs 
heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles Board. 

By: Date: 
Director, Vehicle Titles and Registration Division 
Texas Department of Motor Vehicles 

City Scofflaw Page 1 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



ATTACHMENT A 

Scope of Services 

TxDMV will: 

1. On initial probes (inquiries) of data submissions received from the local government, 
generate an output file containing matching license plates. If no vehicle record is 
found, such factual Information will be indicated on the output file together with the 
input data. Input and output files will be returned to the Local Government after 
completion of the computer run. 

Place "flags" on vehicle records based on data submissions received from Local 
Government containing "flag" request codes. 

2. Remove "flags" from vehicle records, based on data submissions received from 

Local Government, containing "clear" request codes. 

Local Government shall: 

1. Provide data submissions to TxDMV in accordance with TxDMV specifications for 
computer run of initial probes (inquiry), flags (marking) of vehicle records and clears 
(removal) of flags. Due to changing technology, these specifications will be 
distributed by TxDMV to the local governments on September 1st of every year. 

2, Submit an application to establish the method of payment (see Attachment F), and 

establish an account prior to submitting Inquiries. 

City Scofflaw Page 2 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



ATTACHMENT B 

Budget 

Fees fertile submission and transactions shall be submitted to TxDMV in accordance with 

4 3 T A C Chapter 217. 

Payments shall be submitted to the following address: 

Texas Department of Motor Vehicles 
Administrative Services Division 
PO Box 5020 
Austin, TX 78763-5020 

A. If the Local Government chooses to establish a "Pay On Demand" account, the applicable 
payment of fees must be made each time a request to probe (search/inquiry), place or 
remove "flags" from motor vehicle records is submitted to TxDMV. An account will be 
opened to hold the $500.00 (or greater) initial deposit. 

B. As an alternative, if the Local Government chooses to establish a non-Interest bearing 
escrow "Prepaid Account" with TxDMV, upon agreement between the Local Government, 
TxDMV and payment of applicable fees, as described below, TxDMV will establish an 
account in the name of the Local Government. Charges shall be deducted from the escrow 
account until the balance of that account reaches the minimum required balance for the 
Local Government, as determined by TxDMV and provided herein. 

A deposit of at least $500.00 shall be maintained in a non-Interest bearing escrow 
account. 
This initial deposit is to cover estimated service use. The escrow account shall be 
established with TxDMV prior to submission of probes (inquiries), or placing or removing 
"flags" from motor vehicle records for the Local Government. Payment of the deposit shall 
be made by check or warrant, payable to the "Texas Department of Motor Vehicles" and is 
due upon execution of this contract. The $500.00 minimum balance, to be maintained in the 
escrow account, may Increase depending on established monthly usage by the Local 
Government, This additional funding Is payable within fifteen (15) days from receipt of 
notification from TxDMV. 

An escrow account balance statement will be provided by TxDMV each time a probe or a 

request to place or remove "flags" from motor vehicle records is submitted. 

If the balance In the non-Interest bearing escrow account falls below the $500.00 minimum 
balance, TxDMV may suspend processing probes, or placing or removing "flags" from motor 
vehicle records for the Local Government until such time as a deposit Is made by the Local 
Government, In an amount sufficient to increase the balance in the escrow account to the 
$500.00 minimum balance. 

City Scofflaw Page 3 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



ATTACHMENT C 

General Terms and Conditions 

Article 1. Amendments 

This contract may only be amended by written agreement executed by both parties before 

the contract is terminated. 

Article 2. Conflicts Between Agreements 

If the terms of this contract conflict with the terms of any other contract between the parties, 

the most recent contract shall prevail. 

Article 3. Disputes 

Any contractual or administrative disputes regarding the contract will be resolved pursuant to 

Texas Government Code Chapter 2001. 

Article 4. Ownership of Equipment 

Except to the extent that a specific provision of this contract states to the contrary, all 

equipment purchased by TxDMV under this contract will be owned by TxDMV, 

Article 5, Termination 
This contract may be terminated by mutual written agreement, or 30 days after either party 
gives notice to the other party, whichever occurs first. Upon termination of this contract any 
remaining funds in either a "Pay on Demand" account or a "Prepaid Account" as described 
In Attachment B shall be refunded to the Local Government following settlement of any 
outstanding processing fees. 

Article 6. Gratuities 
Any person who is doing business with or who reasonably speaking may do business with 
TxDMV under this contract may not make any offer of benefits, gifts, or favors to employees 
of TxDMV. 

Article 7. Responsibilities of the Parties 
Each party acknowledges that it is not an agent, servant, or employee of the other party. 
Each party is responsible for its own acts and deeds and for those of its agents, servants, or 
employees. 

Article 8. Compliance with Laws 
The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, 
and regulations and with the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 

tribunals in any manner affecting the performance of this agreement. 

Article 9. Signatory Warranty 

Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this 

agreement on behalf of the entity represented. 

City Scofflaw Page 4 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



ATTACHMENT D 

Resolution or Ordinance 

On the day of , 2015, the City/Town 

Council passed Resolution No, , hereinafter identified by 
reference, authorizing the City's participation in the Program. 

City Scofflaw Page 5 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



ATTACHMENT E 

Contact Information 

Technical assistance regarding probes, placing and removing of "flags" from motor vehicle 
records or Information regarding payments for your account may be obtained by contacting 
the IT Services Division, Production Data Support at (512) 465-1311 or (512) 465-1314, 
(Monday through Friday 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM). 

City Scofflaw Page 6 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



ATTACHMENT F 

ACCOUNT INFORMATION 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION 
4000 J A C K S O N AVENUE, AUSTIN, T E X A S 78731-6007 

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE 

Contract Number 

For Department Use Only 

Type of Account Requested: 

"Prepaid" Account "Pay On Request" Account 

DATE: ATTN: (Name and Telephone Number of Person Responsible For Account) 

ACCOUNT NAME: 

BILLING ADDRESS: 

ATTENTI ON: (Name and Mailing Address of the Person Responsible for Sending and Receiving Files.) 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: (For Contact Purposes By E-mail) 

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NUMBER: BUSINESS FAX NUMBER: 

ForDepartm 

Escrow Amount 

Date Aqreement Sianed 

Account Terminated/Canceled 

Non-Payment User Request 

ent Use Only 

Account Number 

City Scofflaw Page 7 of 7 Revised 08/15/2011 



AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 
 

Executive Summary 

January 15, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of an Ordinance Releasing approximately 1.4 
Acres from Leander’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction to Cedar Park’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction and Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an Amendment 
to the Boundary Agreement between Leander and Cedar Park 
 
Background:  Subsequent to the December 14, 2006, Boundary Agreement between 
Leander and Cedar Park, TXDOT realigned F.M. 1431.  During this realignment process, 
TXDOT also released a small area of right-of-way consisting of 1.4 acres, more or less, 
immediately east of Trails End Road on the south side of F.M. 1431 as shown in Exhibit 
“A” of the attached, proposed Ordinance.    
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the proposed Ordinance releasing 
approximately 1.4 acres from Leander’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction to Cedar Park’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute an 
Amendment to the Boundary Agreement between Leander and Cedar Park. 
 
Attachments: Proposed Ordinance Releasing approximately 1.4 Acres from Leander’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction to Cedar Park’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction and Authorizing 
the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an Amendment to the Boundary Agreement 
between Leander and Cedar Park  

 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 

















AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject:   Consider reappointments to the Board of Adjustment/Appeal 

for Gil Debner, Mary Orton, Antonio Martinez and Tim Luke 
 
 
Background:   All four of the above mentioned members are currently serving on 

the Board of Adjustment/Appeal.  All of their terms have expired.  
They have all expressed an interest in remaining on the Board.  I 
spoke with the Board Selection Committee members and they are 
all in agreement to reappoint the current members to another 2 
year term.   

 
Origination: Debbie Haile  
 
  
Financial  
Consideration:   No financial impact to the City 
 
  
Recommendation: No staff recommendation 
 
 
Attachments: None 
  
  
Prepared By: Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject:   Consider appointment to the Veterans Park Committee 
 
 
Background:   An application from Wilson Early was received for the Veterans 

Park Committee.  Mr. Early meets the qualifications for the 
committee. Council will not vote on this appointment as committee 

                                    members to the Veterans Park Committee are appointed by the 
Mayor 

 
Origination: Mayor Fielder  
 
  
Financial  
Consideration:   n/a 
 
  
Recommendation: n/a 
 
 
Attachments: Application for Wilson L. Early 
  
  
Prepared By: Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary  
 





AGENDA ITEM # 24 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
January 15, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject:   Consider an Ordinance establishing a filing fee for filing an 

application for a place on the ballot 
 
 
Background:   As per Section 5.05 of the City Charter, the application for a place 

on the ballot shall be accompanied by a filing fee, or a petition in 
lieu of the filing fee, as required by ordinance and not inconsistent 
with state law.  The Council will set the amount of the filing fee to 
be inserted in the attached ordinance. 

 
Origination: City Charter  
 
  
Financial  
Consideration:   n/a 
 
  
Recommendation: n/a 
 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 
 Section 5.05 – City Charter 
 Subchapter C – Election Code 
  
  
Prepared By: Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary  
 



ORDINANCE NO. _____________    
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING 
A FILING FEE FOR APPLICAIONS FOR A PLACE ON THE BALLOT 
FOR CITY COUNCIL ELECTIONS AND A PETITION IN LIEU OF SUCH 
FILING FEE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AN OPEN MEETING 
CLAUSE, AND EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, the registered voters of the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), approved an 
amendment to the City Charter which provides for an application for a place on the ballot for City 
Council elections to be accompanied by filing fee, or a petition in lieu of a filing fee, as set forth in 
an ordinance adopted by the City Council and not inconsistent with state law; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council herein establishes such filing fee and petition process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the filing fee and the petition in lieu of filing fee are adopted in accordance with the 
City Charter and the Texas Election Code;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
  Section 1.   Findings of Fact. The findings and recitations set out in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct, and they are hereby adopted by the City Council and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
  Section 2.   Filing Fee for Place on the Ballot and Petition in Lieu of Filing Fee.  Article 
1.03 of the Leander Code of Ordinances (the “Code”), is hereby modified and amended by adding 
Section 1.03.002, entitled “Filing Fee for Place on the Ballot; Petition in Lieu of Fee”, to read as 
follows: 
 

Sec. 1.03.002  Filing Fee for Place on the Ballot; Petition in Lieu of Filing Fee 
 

(a)  An application for a place on the ballot for a city council election shall be 
accompanied by a filing in the amount set forth in Section A1.007, Appendix A 
of the Code, or a petition meeting the requirements set forth in Section 
1.03.002(b).   

(b) In lieu of a filing fee, the application may be accompanied by a petition 
supporting the applicant’s placement on the ballot for the position sought that 
contains the greater of: (1) twenty-five signatures; or (2) one-half of one percent 
of the total vote received in the territory from which the office is elected by all 
candidates for mayor in the most recent mayoral general election.  The petition 
must comply with the applicable requirements set forth in Subchapter C, Chapter 
141, Texas Election Code, as amended. To be valid, the signatures must comply 
with the requirements set forth in Section 141.063, Texas Election Code, as 

Comment [PS1]: The number of signatures here 
is the minimum set by state law.  Council can set a 
higher number, within reason. 

 



amended. 
(c) An application that does not include a filing fee or a petition in lieu of a filing fee 

that complies with this Section will be rejected.   
(d) The City Secretary shall review an application accompanied by a petition in lieu 

of filing fee and the petition to determine whether the application and petition 
comply with the requirements state law and this Section, as applicable, as soon 
as practicable after receipt of the application and petition, but no later than the 
____ day after the date the candidate’s application and petition are received by 
the City Secretary.  If the application and/or petition do not comply with state 
law and/or the requirements of this Section, as applicable, the City Secretary 
shall reject the application and the petition and immediately deliver to the 
candidate written notice for the reason for the rejection.  A determination that a 
petition complies with this Section does not preclude a later determination that 
the petition does not comply. 

(e) A filing fee shall be refunded to the candidate or the candidate’s estate, as 
appropriate, if before the date of the election for which the application is made: 
(1) the candidate dies, (2) is declared ineligible, or (3) the candidate’s application 
is determined not to comply with the requirements as to form, content and 
procedure that it must satisfy for the candidate’s name to be placed on the ballot. 
 This subsection shall be administered in accordance with Section 141.038, 
Texas Election Code, as amended.  

 
  Section 3.   Filing Fee.   Appendix A, Article A1.000 is hereby amended by adding Section 
A1.007, entitled “Filing Fee for Place on the Ballot” to read as follows:   
 
  Sec. A1.007  Filing Fee for Place on the Ballot 

A fee in the amount of $_____ shall be charged to each person who files for a place on the ballot 
for a City Council election, unless such person files a petition in lieu of the filing fee in 
accordance with Section 1.03.002 of the Code. 

 
  Section 4.   Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  The Code is hereby amended as 
provided in this Ordinance.  All parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby amended to the 
extent of such conflict only.  To the extent of a conflict between this Ordinance and another 
ordinance of the City, this Ordinance shall control. 
 
  Section 5.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after final 
passage and publication in the manner required by the Texas Local Government Code and the 
Charter. 
 
  Section 6.   Severability.   It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that 
the sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of 

Comment [PS2]: When just an application needs 
to be reviewed, state law requires the application be 
reviewed in five days.  When a petition accompanies 
an application, the review must be completed as soon 
as practicable.  I recommend setting a reasonable 
deadline, so that prospective candidates can time 
their applications appropriately, giving them time for 
corrections. 

 



any such invalid section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase. If any provision of this Ordinance 
shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect 
other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
  Section 8.   Open Meetings.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required, and that public notice of 
the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this ______ day of January, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:          The City of Leander, Texas 

 
 

____________________________   _______________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
     
 
 

 





SUBCHAPTER C. PETITION 
 

Sec. 141.061.  APPLICABILITY OF SUBCHAPTER.  This 

subchapter applies to each petition filed in connection with a 

candidate's application for a place on the ballot. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986.  

Amended by Acts 1987, 70th Leg., ch. 493, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 

1987. 
 
 

Sec. 141.062.  VALIDITY OF PETITION.  (a)  To be valid, a 

petition must: 

(1)  be timely filed with the appropriate authority; 

(2)  contain valid signatures in the number required 

by this code;  and 

(3)  comply with any other applicable requirements for 

validity prescribed by this code. 

(b)  A petition may consist of multiple parts. 

(c)  After the filing deadline: 

(1)  a candidate may not amend a petition in lieu of a 

filing fee submitted with the candidate's application; and 

(2)  the authority with whom the application is filed 

may not accept an amendment to a petition in lieu of a filing 

fee submitted with the candidate's application. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986. 

Amended by:  

Acts 2011, 82nd Leg., R.S., Ch. 254 (H.B. 1135), Sec. 2, 

eff. September 1, 2011. 
 
 

Sec. 141.063.  VALIDITY OF SIGNATURE.  (a)  A signature on 

a petition is valid if: 

(1)  except as otherwise provided by this code, the 

signer, at the time of signing, is a registered voter of the 

territory from which the office sought is elected or has been 

issued a registration certificate for a registration that will 

http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/82R/billtext/html/HB01135F.HTM


become effective in that territory on or before the date of the 

applicable election; 

(2)  the petition includes the following information 

with respect to each signer: 

(A)  the signer's residence address; 

(B)  the signer's date of birth or the signer's 

voter registration number and, if the territory from which 

signatures must be obtained is situated in more than one county, 

the county of registration; 

(C)  the date of signing; and 

(D)  the signer's printed name; 

(3)  the part of the petition in which the signature 

appears contains the affidavit required by Section 141.065; 

(4)  each statement that is required by this code to 

appear on each page of the petition appears, at the time of 

signing, on the page on which the signature is entered; and 

(5)  any other applicable requirements prescribed by 

this code for a signature's validity are complied with. 

(b)  The signature is the only information that is required 

to appear on the petition in the signer's own handwriting. 

(c)  The use of ditto marks or abbreviations does not 

invalidate a signature if the required information is reasonably 

ascertainable. 

(d)  The omission of the state from the signer's residence 

address does not invalidate a signature unless the political 

subdivision from which the signature is obtained is situated in 

more than one state.  The omission of the zip code from the 

address does not invalidate a signature. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986.  

Amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 1349, Sec. 52, eff. Sept. 

1, 1997. 

Amended by:  

Acts 2005, 79th Leg., Ch. 726 (H.B. 1509), Sec. 1, eff. 

September 1, 2005. 
 
 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=EL&Value=141.065&Date=6/28/2014
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/79R/billtext/html/HB01509F.HTM


Sec. 141.064.  METHOD OF ACQUIRING SIGNATURE.  A person 

circulating a petition must: 

(1)  before permitting a person to sign, point out and 

read to the person each statement pertaining to the signer that 

appears on the petition; 

(2)  witness each signature; 

(3)  ascertain that each date of signing is correct;  

and 

(4)  before the petition is filed, verify each 

signer's registration status and ascertain that each 

registration number entered on the petition is correct. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986. 
 
 

Sec. 141.065.  AFFIDAVIT OF CIRCULATOR.  (a)  Each part of 

a petition must include an affidavit of the person who 

circulated it stating that the person: 

(1)  pointed out and read to each signer, before the 

petition was signed, each statement pertaining to the signer 

that appears on the petition; 

(2)  witnessed each signature; 

(3)  verified each signer's registration status;  and 

(4)  believes each signature to be genuine and the 

corresponding information to be correct. 

(b)  If a petition contains an affidavit that complies with 

Subsection (a), for the purpose of determining whether the 

petition contains a sufficient number of valid signatures, the 

authority with whom the candidate's application is filed may 

treat as valid each signature to which the affidavit applies, 

without further verification, unless proven otherwise. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986. 
 
 

Sec. 141.066.  SIGNING MORE THAN ONE PETITION PROHIBITED.  

(a)  A person may not sign the petition of more than one 

candidate for the same office in the same election. 



(b)  The following statement must appear at the top of each 

page of a petition:  "Signing the petition of more than one 

candidate for the same office in the same election is 

prohibited." 

(c)  A signature on a candidate's petition is invalid if 

the signer signed the petition subsequent to signing a petition 

of another candidate for the same office in the same election. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986.  

Amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 864, Sec. 94, eff. Sept. 1, 

1997. 
 
 

Sec. 141.067.  WITHDRAWAL OF SIGNATURE.  (a)  A signature 

may be withdrawn from a petition as provided by this section. 

(b)  To withdraw a signature, the signer must request that 

the signer's signature be withdrawn. 

(c)  To be effective, a withdrawal request must: 

(1)  be in writing and be signed and acknowledged by 

the signer of the petition;  and 

(2)  be filed with the authority with whom the 

petition is required to be filed not later than the date the 

petition is received by the authority or the seventh day before 

the petition filing deadline, whichever is earlier. 

(d)  A withdrawal request filed by mail is considered to be 

filed at the time of its receipt by the appropriate authority. 

(e)  The signer must deliver a copy of the withdrawal 

request to the candidate when the request is filed. 

(f)  The filing of an effective withdrawal request 

nullifies the signature on the petition and places the signer in 

the same position as if the signer had not signed the petition. 

(g)  If the withdrawal of a signature reduces the number of 

signatures on the petition below the prescribed minimum for the 

petition to be valid, the authority with whom the request is 

filed shall notify the candidate immediately by telephone, 

telegram, or an equally or more expeditious method of the number 

of withdrawn signatures.  Before the third day after the date 



the candidate receives the notice, the candidate's petition may 

be supplemented with signatures equal in number to the number of 

signatures withdrawn. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986.  

Amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 864, Sec. 95, eff. Sept. 1, 

1997. 
 
 

Sec. 141.068.  DUTY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY TO VERIFY 

SIGNATURES.  (a)  On request of the secretary of state, a voter 

registrar shall verify the voter registration status of a signer 

of a petition filed with the secretary who the petition 

indicates is registered or has been accepted for registration in 

the county served by the registrar. 

(b)  On request of the secretary of state, a county clerk 

shall ascertain from the records in the clerk's custody whether 

a signer of a petition filed with the secretary is shown to have 

voted in a particular election. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986. 
 
 

Sec. 141.069.  VERIFYING SIGNATURES BY STATISTICAL SAMPLE.  

If signatures on a petition that is required to contain more 

than 1,000 signatures are to be verified by the authority with 

whom the candidate's application is required to be filed, the 

authority may use as the basis for the verification any 

reasonable statistical sampling method that ensures an accuracy 

rate of at least 95 percent. 
 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986.  

Amended by Acts 1987, 70th Leg., ch. 54, Sec. 16(b), eff. Sept. 

1, 1987;  Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 1349, Sec. 53, eff. Sept. 1, 

1997. 
 


	Agenda
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item #17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23
	Item # 24



